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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM"”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached than
other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors
should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies
and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of
GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other

sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a
risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high
market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid

market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no
responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of

the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of GreaterChina
Professional Services Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
(the “"GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard
to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained
in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of

which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.

This report, in both English and Chinese versions, is available on the

Company’s website at www.gca.com.hk.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETR®E

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of GreaterChina
Professional Services Limited (the “Company”), | am honoured to present
the audited results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the

year ended 31 March 2014.

PERFORMANCE

During the year, the Group recorded turnover of HK$88.9 million,
representing a 7.6% decrease comparing with the HK$96.2 million in
2013. Profit attributable to owners of the Company was HK$31.3 million,
up 16.4% over the HK$26.9 million last year. Basic earnings per share was

HK6.25 cents, versus HK5.39 cents in last year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, our overall services income decreased during
the year as compared to last year owing to a decrease in asset advisory
services income. Nevertheless our income from asset appraisal services
and corporate services and consultancy increased by 11.6% and 38.0%

respectively.

Our services are broadly categorised into two main sectors: (i) asset advisory

services and asset appraisal; and (i) corporate services and consultancy.

Asset advisory services and asset appraisal are the core business of the
Group, which typically involves provision of independent valuation services
to a number of listed groups to meet market, regulatory and fiduciary
requirements, sourcing and identifying potential investment opportunities or
investors, undertaking due diligence and evaluation on the underlying assets

and provision of procedural and strategic business advices.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETR®E

Asset advisory services income is mainly success-based and project based
nature. During the year, asset advisory services income was approximately
HK$1.0 million, marking a decrease of approximately 96.0% as compared to
last year. The decrease is mainly due to certain of our engagements are still
underway and have not been completed at year ended date. Asset appraisal
services income increased to approximately HK$43.1 million, or increased by
approximately 11.6% in 2014 as compared with last year mainly due to an
increase in our client base. Consequently, our revenue from asset advisory
services and asset appraisal was approximately HK$44.1 million, representing

a decrease of approximately 30.9% as compared to last year.

The corporate services and consultancy segment mainly focuses on provision
of advice to corporations in areas such as corporate governance, internal
control, enterprise risk management and other operational aspects as
well as provision of back office administration, which includes company
secretarial services, human resources management and administrative
services, accounting and tax services, etc. Owing to our growing client
base and diversifying income source, revenue generated from this segment
amounted to approximately HK$44.8 million in 2014, marking an increase of

approximately 38.0% as compared to last year.

During the year, we disposed our shares (the “Disposal”) in TodayIR Holdings
Limited (“TodayIR") for a total consideration of HK$24,500,000. The
acquisition of shares of TodaylIR in 2011 was primarily to create a cooperative
platform through which the Company may cross sell to the client base of
the TodayIR. That aim having been satisfactorily achieved and in view of
the financial condition of the TodayIR, we consider that the Disposal is a
good opportunity for the Company to realise its investment in TodaylR.
Furthermore, the net proceeds from the Disposal can enhance the cash flow
of the Company which will enable the Company to better utilise its resources

to pursue business with growth potential when opportunities arise.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETR®E

PROSPECT

Looking ahead, the momentum for European and US economic recovery
is yet to be restored and China also reported a lower GDP growth than
before; implying challenges to our business. Although China plans to speed
up economic reforms and the State Council has recently further outlined
nine targets to be achieved this year to strive for breakthroughs in capital
market, we remain cautiously optimistic with respect to the steady demand
for professional commercial services in the PRC, Taiwan, Hong Kong and
Macau (together, the “Greater China”). As companies in Greater China,
especially in China, grow in corporate size and operational complexity and
geographical diversification, the need for a leading professional advisor on
asset value, procedures and regulations, as well as investment matching is
expected to remain there. Based on our existing competitive advantages and
market position in our core business segments, the continuing increase in
and diversification of our client base and income source through horizontal
acquisitions, our experienced professional teams and provision of convenient
one-stop professional services, we are confident to address such challenges.
Furthermore, based on our business setups in China, Malaysia, Europe and
Middle-East, specifically in London and Dubai, we believe our client base
and income source would be further diversified and increased. As at this
report date, our cash and bank position restores to approximately HK$25
million from approximately HK$4 million as at 31 March 2014. We pledge
our commitment to apply the fund to finance our operations effectively and
to fund any future investment opportunities. We will continue to capture
market opportunities and enhance the quality and scope of our services in

order to deliver sustainable growth in returns to our shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express my
sincere gratitude to the Board, our business partners, all of our management
and staff members, whose hard work and support have made me confident
that the Company is well-positioned to sustain its robust development. The
journey may be tough, but with the unwavering dedication of our Board,

management and staff, we are set to grow stronger every step we take.

Au-Yang Cheong Yan, Peter

Chairman and Independent Non-Executive Director

Hong Kong
24 June 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB R DA

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE TO THE MODIFIED/
QUALIFIED AUDITOR'S OPINION

According to our past experience, revenue from asset advisory and corporate
consultancy services would have a longer collection period. As at 31 March
2014, the trade receivables from asset advisory and corporate consultancy
services aged over 180 days amounted to approximately HK$67,634,000 (31
March 2013: approximately HK$27,591,000) and its subsequent settlement
up to the date of this report amounted to approximately HK$10,097,000.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by the Management with actions
taken, where necessary, to facilitate subsequent settlement without undue

delay.

The Management is also aware of its responsibility to prepare the published
financial statements which show a true and fair view. In this aspect, the
Management would make appropriate disclosure of trade receivables,
including details of subsequent settlement in our future quarterly results

announcement and report.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Results of the Group

The Group's revenue for the year ended 31 March 2014 was approximately
HK$88.9 million (2013: approximately HK$96.2 million), representing a
decrease of approximately 7.6% from that of 2013. The decrease in the
Group's revenue during the year was mainly attributable to decrease in asset

advisory services income as described in the “Business Review" section.

The Group's cost of services mainly consists of direct labour cost and sub-
contracting charges. During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group's
direct labour cost and sub-contracting charges were approximately HK$14.0
million and HK$4.6 million respectively (2013: approximately HK$13.9 million
and HK$11.9 million respectively), representing an increase of approximately
0.7% and decrease by 61.3% respectively from that of 2013. The decrease
in sub-contracting charges was primarily due to less engagements which

required professional services provided by independent third-parties.

GreaterChina Professional Services Limited 3
Annual Report 2014

EEEHRET BREZRE

fiE R 2B

REBFELR EEBHEROEXARE 2K

W E HE R - 20143 A318 © BRELERB
180AMRAEEBBNEEXARENE S
FEM R IB R £ B4 567,634,000/ 7T (201343
A318 : 4927,591,0008 7T) R ESHERRE 2
1% 4518 14 49/210,097,0007% 7T ° 74N ££ & B &
T A% LK B0 i LT R T A R B - B ER B R
T8 (WM E) EHEN S SR ERKEE R
HEEMTERNITE-

BEEENTAEERAEEERN TR R AR Z LT
BEMBHRRZET -RUTE  EREFER
KEESERWIE BRRARFEEERS
MHRERNZRBEENFSE-

B %5 121 R
REBERRE

REZE2014F3A31 B ILEE - AEEEEKE
#988,900,0007% 7T (20134 : 996,200,000

TL) BR013FR AT 6%  FA - AEEAI
HRD - FEHEREEBRREEARD (R
[ EI R — & ATt ) FrEce

AEEOBRBERAZTEREERELIAAR

BT REZE2014F3A318LFE
REENEESIRARS BRI A
14,000,000 7T }4,600,000/%8 JT (20134 : &
51 #713,900,0007% 7T % 11,900,000 7T ) « &

20137 BIEAN490.7% K 1 61.3% - DB
WO EBHNBIE=AREZVEZE
E e e



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEE W&k

The Group’s administrative expenses for the year ended 31 March 2014
was approximately HK$38.7 million (2013: approximately HK$36.2 million),
representing a slight increase of approximately 6.7% from that of 2013. The
increase in the Group’s administrative expenses during the year was mainly
due to increase in sales and administrative staff cost and rental expenses.
Moreover, due to the Group's further business expansion, by setting up new

offices, in overseas market, more operating expanses incurred for the year.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2014 was approximately HK$31.3 million (2013: approximately HK$26.9
million), representing an increase of approximately 16.4% from that of
2013. The increase was mainly due to recognition of a gain on disposal of
an associate and overprovision of Profits Tax in previous years amounted to

HK$2.5 million and HK$6.2 million respectively during the year.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The majority of the Group's businesses is in Hong Kong and is denominated
in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi, and United States dollars. The Group is of
the opinion that its exposure to foreign exchange rate risk is limited. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
the management monitors closely foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need

arises.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$4 million (31 March 2013: approximately HK$19.5
million). As at 31 March 2014, the Group had net current assets of
approximately HK$144.0 million (31 March 2013: approximately HK$91.3
million). Current ratio as at 31 March 2014 was 14 (31 March 2013: 6).

The Group's operations and investments are financed principally by revenues
generated from business operations and available bank balances. As at 31
March 2014, the Group had no borrowing and a zero gearing ratio (31
March 2013: Nil), which is defined as net debt (total borrowings net of cash

and bank balances) over total equity, is resulted.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB R DA

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the year, the Group invested approximately HK$0.3 million (2013:

HK$0.3 million) for acquisition of plant and equipment.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2014, the Group did not have any significant capital
commitments (31 March 2013: Nil).

BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31 March 2014, the Group’s bank deposits in the amount of
approximately HK$1.0 million (31 March 2013: HK$1.0 million) were
pledged to secure banking facilities of HK$2.3 million granted to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2014, the Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities (31 March 2013: Nil).

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2014, the Group employed 61 (31 March 2013: 62) full-time
employees including management and administrative staff. The employees’
remuneration, promotion and salary increments are assessed based on
both individual's and Company’s performance, professional and working
experience and by reference to prevailing market practice and standards. The

Group regards quality staff as one of the key factors to corporate success.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB R DA

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE COMPANY'S
PLACING

During the period from 1 October 2013 to 31 March 2014 (the "“Review

Period”), the net proceeds from the Company's placing had been applied as

AP ZBESEMSNIEFHE
A&

H2013F10H1H £2201453HA31H 2 B8
([DEHRAE])  ANAREREEEMERIEFE

follows: ERARNATRAE:
Planned use of
proceeds as
stated in the
prospectus
and updated
intended use
of proceeds Actual use
as stated above of proceeds
during the during the
review period review period
HK$ million HK$ million
BREERT
FERER
51 & HA
WEtEIRAER
LHiEEERS FIBRER
REAEN B BE S 9
BHER BRAS
BEBT BEET
Business development E Sy
—in asset appraisal and corporate services —BENE REERS - 3.29
Improvement of public awareness RARNBRRE 0.20 0.14
Human resources deployment AN ERFAB 1.20 2.52
Note: B ot

The business objectives and planned use of proceeds as stated in the prospectus
were based on the best estimation of the future market conditions made by the
Group at the time of preparing the prospectus. The proceeds were applied in
accordance with the actual development of the market. The remaining proceeds
as at 31 March 2014 had been placed as interest bearing deposits in licensed
banks in Hong Kong.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB W N DA

COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES WITH

EBEECHEREREENLER

ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS

An analysis comparing the business objectives as set out in the prospectus

and the actual business progress during the Review Period is set out below:

Business objectives for
the Review Period

REEHENEEE R

REEHRE ARERMENRSE B REER
EBERZLBIMMAT

Actual business progress for the Review Period

REESHENEREREE

— Business development

—RBRR

— Improvement of public awareness

~RARBRM

— Human resources deployment

— AN EIRFR

We established a representative office in Shenzhen and set up sales offices in Shanghai and
Chongging in the PRC.
AEBERPERNEIRRERN LEREERILLHE -

We invested resources in marketing activities to enhance our public awareness, including
organisation of professional seminars and publication of newsletters and periodicals.
AEBEERMERETTSHERTS UWRAARUAEENZH EENEEN
A g R R R E T

We recruited additional professional staff to expand our services in Hong Kong and China.

AEECHBERIEXE T UNERASREETE DB Z RS-
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEkEREEREER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong, aged 53, is one of the founding directors of the Group
and was appointed as the managing director and an executive director of
the Company in December 2010. He is the member of the remuneration
committee, the nomination committee, the executive committee and the
compliance officer of the Company; and the director of certain companies
of the Group. He is responsible for overall management and development
including frontline co-ordination with clients, organisations as well as
formulation of development strategy of the Group. Professionally, Mr. Ip is
a Chartered Valuation Surveyor, a Registered Professional Surveyor (General
Practice) under the Surveyors Registration Ordinance and a Registered
Business Valuer of the Hong Kong Business Valuation Forum. He is now
serving as a member of the Board of Asian Valuation Professional Group of

the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.

In addition, Mr. Ip was appointed as a committee member of the People’s
Political Consultative Conference of Harbin, the PRC and was elected as a
vice president of the Professional Managers Association of Guangdong in the
second half of 2011 after having received the Outstanding Entrepreneurship
Award from the Enterprise Asia, a non-governmental organisation for

entrepreneurship in mid-2011.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEREER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan, Peter, aged 54, was appointed by the
Company as the chairman and an independent non-executive director in
May 2011. He is the chairman of the nomination committee and a member
of the remuneration committee and the audit committee of the Company.
He received his Bachelor of Science degree in Business Studies from the
University of Bradford in England and his Master of Science degree in
Accounting and Finance from the London School of Economics and Political
Science. Mr. Au-Yang was appointed as the chief financial officer of Sateri
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange) on 1 January
2013. Also, he is a director of AsiaSoft Company Limited which is the holding
company of a group with businesses in different sectors of the software
industry. Prior to joining AsiaSoft Company Limited, Mr. Au-Yang spent
more than 20 years in the financial services sector in the Asia Pacific region.
He joined the Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation group (the
"HSBC Group”) in 1985 and became a co-head of Investment Banking, Asia
Pacific of the HSBC Group in 2001. During his employment with the HSBC
Group from 1985 to 2003, Mr. Au-Yang worked on various equity capital
fund-raising exercises and merger and acquisition projects in the Asia Pacific
region. He was an executive director and the chief operating officer of The
Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC") during the period from 2003
to 2006. In late 2004, Mr. Au-Yang doubled up as the executive director in
charge of the corporate finance division of the SFC. Mr. Au-Yang is currently
an independent non-executive director of Telefield International (Holdings)

Limited, the shares of which is listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Wu Chi Keung, aged 57, was appointed by the Company as the
independent non-executive director in May 2011. He is the chairman of the
audit committee and the remuneration committee and a member of the
nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Wu has more than 30 years
experience in auditing and financial advisory services. Mr. Wu was a partner
of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu until he retired in December 2008. Mr. Wu is a
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Wu graduated
from Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as Hong Kong Polytechnic

University) in 1980 with a Higher Diploma in Accountancy.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEkEREEREER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Mr. Wu is currently an independent non-executive director of China
Renji Medical Group Limited, Zhong Fa Zhan Holdings Limited, China
Medical System Holdings Limited, Huabao International Holdings Limited,
YuanShengTai Dairy Farm Limited and Jinchuan Group International
Resources Co. Ltd, the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Wu was also an independent non-executive director of JF Household

Furnishings Limited which is listed on the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Ng See Wai, Rowena, aged 51, was appointed by the Company as
an independent non-executive director in February 2014. She is a member
of the audit committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. She graduated from the University of
Manchester in the United Kingdom and holds a Master degree in Investment
and Finance from the University of Hull in the United Kingdom. Ms. Ng has
over 20 years of experience in corporate finance and investment banking.
She is a member of the Hong Kong Securities Institute. She had held various
senior positions in international investment banks and had been appointed
by listed companies as executive director, chief financial officer and deputy
chief executive officer. Ms. Ng was the executive director of China Nickel

Resources Holdings Company Limited which is listed on the Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Un Kwok Kee, John, aged 47, joined the Group as its head of finance
and administration in 2010. Mr. Un has over 22 years of experience in the
financial accounting, company secretarial field, initial public offering and
auditing. Mr. Un holds a Master degree in Business Administration from
University of Wales and is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of

Certified Public Accountants.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEkEREEREER

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Ms. Fung Mei Ling, aged 44, joined the Group as the head of compliance
of the Group in 2010. She is the company secretary of the Company and
is responsible for the company secretarial matters of the Group. Ms. Fung
holds a Master of Finance degree from Curtin University of Technology.
Ms. Fung is an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administration. She
had been the company secretary of certain listed companies in Hong Kong
and has over 10 years of experience in the area of company secretarial. She
is also currently the company secretary and the authorised representative of

Prosperity Investment Holdings Limited.

Mr. Chu Hiu Fung, aged 40, is the head of internal control of the Group.
Mr. Chu has over 18 years of experience in the valuation industry. From
1995 to 1997, he worked in American Appraisal Hongkong Limited as valuer
during which his duties included asset inspection, assessing asset value and
preparing valuation report. Mr. Chu was then employed by RHL International
Property Consultants as manager responsible for fixed asset valuation during
the period from 1997 to 1998. He joined the Group in 1998 as manager of
the industrial facilities division of Greater China Appraisal Limited and was
promoted to senior manager of Greater China Appraisal Limited in 2002. He
was then promoted to associate — valuation project in 2005 and assistant
vice president in 2006. He is experienced in valuation of tangible assets and
is mainly responsible for the project management, coordination and review
of other valuers” work. Mr. Chu is a member of International Association of
Consultants, Valuators and Analysts. Mr. Chu obtained his Bachelor degree

in Manufacturing Engineering from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEkEREEREERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Cheung Kam Shing, Terry, aged 51, joined the Group in 2010 and he
is currently the chief operating officer of the Company who is responsible to
assist the managing director of the Company for the day-to-day operations
of asset advisory, asset appraisal, corporate and consultancy services of the
Group. He is the director of certain companies of the Group. He holds a
Bachelor degree in Social Science from the University of Hong Kong and
obtained a Master degree in Science from the University of London. He
has over 29 years of experience in finance industry including investment
banking, fund management, and listed companies. From 1984 to 1986,
Mr. Cheung worked in a Japanese securities company as sales executive to
cover Japan market. From 1986 to 1989, he was employed as a securities
dealer by Fidelity Investment Management (HK) Limited. Mr. Cheung was
then employed by a securities company as marketing manager during the
period from 1989 to 1991 to cover South East Asia equities markets. From
1991 to 1994, he worked in another securities company as senior manager.
Mr. Cheung was employed by a finance company from 1994 to 2000 as
associate director responsible for equity sales activities of Hong Kong and
other Asian securities markets. From 2000 to 2005, he was appointed
as the managing director of Culturecom Holdings Limited, a company
engaged in publishing at the time. He was responsible for various areas
including business planning, due diligence, financial analysis and structuring
transactions. During the period from 2005 to 2010, Mr. Cheung was
appointed as the managing director of a private investment company whose
principal business is private equity investment including but not limited to
PRC real estate development and other direct investment. He is currently the
independent non-executive director of the China Medical System Holdings

Limited, a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

17

SREERE (&)

REBR KL S1E R2010F A A ERE R
BEARREEBE BEMPALRESE
IR AEEEERE  BENG  CERE
ARGz BELEE - BAKAARETERQR
CER BIEARAREMGRIEB AN
VRS RBARBESELEBMA - FRERITE
HEHBB2OFAR  BIERERIT ESBEEINU
K TR e PA1984F 19865 SR L AP —
RAREHRREREEEME XBHEES
H AT 45 - 19865 £ 19894 » (R X F ==
REEE (BB BRAFNETABARERS
B o RAEAHBN1989F £ 1991 F R — K F
HFRAREBEAMSHELR XEHEEER
IR T o 1991 FE E1994F - RS —RE
FNAMER S RASIE - R AER19945F 2000
FE-REHUERTAIESZ AEHER
o Ath S0 M 78 55 T 35 B IR FE S & 8 ) - 7A20004F
F2005F - WEREAILEEEEBRAT
MEBEBELEIE ZARNER RS E D MRE
% REERBRREVELRE ZREL WKS
MERRBELASEUERHE S A% - 522005
FE2010FH RAEBZERA—RILAKRE
NAMEBEFALIE ZANETBEBALE
RIERE (PIEETRAPEFHERERE
MEERE) HENA—RRBIMERL
MH) A R RS FEEERE R A RIA B IEIT
o

R

REEXRBEERLA
2014 £



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CEEHES

Pursuant to Rule 18.44 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Board is pleased to

present the corporate governance report for the year ended 31 March 2014.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company committed to achieve high standards of corporate governance
to safeguard the interests of its shareholders and enhance its corporate value.
The Company's corporate governance practices are based on the principles
and code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code") in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules.

During the year, the Company complied with the code provisions in the CG
Code with the exception of the code provisions A.2.1 and A.4.1. Details of

such deviation will be explained below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by the Board which is responsible for overseeing
the overall strategy and development of the Company as well as monitoring
the internal control policies and evaluating the financial performance of the
Group. The Board sets the overall strategy and directions for the Group with

a view to developing its business and enhancing the shareholders value.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year to formulate overall strategy,
monitor business development as well as the financial performance of
the Group. The Board has delegated certain duties and authorities to the

management for the day-to-day management of the Group's operation.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance functions
such as developing and reviewing the Company'’s policies and practices
on corporate governance, reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of directors and senior management
and the Company's policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements and etc. The Board held meetings from time to time
whenever necessary. During the year, the Board reviewed the compliance
with the CG Code, the disclosure in the corporate governance report and the
effectiveness of the internal controls systems of the Group through the audit

committee of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CEEHEE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Board currently comprises one executive Director, namely Mr. Ip Kwok

Kwong (managing director) and three independent non-executive Directors,

EEg M

EFeRRAE—EZRTESER AL (B
EREB) R =ZRBIUFATESRGRER L

namely Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan, Peter (chairman), Mr. Wu Chi Keungand 4 (X&) #EBREERRBEL T - FAE
Ms. Ng See Wai, Rowena. The attendance records of the Directors for the  SERARBIZEZTEEH ZEEEZNREX
Board, committee and general meetings of the Company for the year areas & 2 HErC8ka0 T ¢
follows:
No. of meetings attended/No. of meetings held
HESERY ETEERY
Annual
Audit Remuneration  Nomination General
Board Committee ~ Committee Committee Meeting
Exg EnZEE ¥FHZEE REZEE RRBEAE
Directors =
Executive Director HITEE
Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong REHNEE 5/5 N/A 33 22 17
TER
Independent Non-Executive Director BUFHTEE
Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan, Peter BfERBLE 5/5 44 33 212 1/1
Mr. Wu Chi Keung EEEE 5/5 4/4 33 22 1N
Mr. Wan Kam To FRBEE 23 33 N/A N/A 171
(resigned on 1 December 2013) (#2013%F NEHA i
12R18#E)
Ms. Ng See Wai, Rowena REBLT 11 0/0 0/0 0/0 N/A
(appointed on 17 February 2014) (720145 TEA

2AVIBERE)

An executive committee of the Company was formed comprising of one
executive Director, namely Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong and the management, namely
Mr. Wong Chi Keung. The executive committee is to enhance the day-to-
day management and operation of the Group to be run effectively and was
delegated by the Board of certain duties and authority relating to the areas
in accounting operation of the Group and contracting with outsiders in the

ordinary course of business of the Group.

During the year, all Directors have received regular updates on the changes
to and developments in the relevant laws and regulations applicable to
the directors. Additionally, trainings have been attended by the Directors
covering a wide range of topics including directors’ duties, internal control
and updates on the GEM Listing Rules and Securities and Futures Ordinance

("SFO").
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

In compliance with Rules 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company appointed independent non-executive Directors (the “INED")
with at least one of them having appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise except for the

following deviation:

Following the resignation of Mr. Wan Kam To as an INED and a member of
the audit committee of the Company on 1 December 2013, the Company
has two INEDs and two audit committee members, the number of which falls
below the minimum number required under Rule 5.05(1) and Rule 5.28 of
the GEM Listing Rules. Upon the appointment of Ms. Ng See Wai, Rowena
as an INED and a member of the audit committee of the Company on 17
February 2014, the Company fulfilled the requirements of minimum number
of INED and audit committee member under Rule 5.05(1) and Rule 5.28 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

The INEDs, together with the executive Director, ensure that the Board
prepares its financial and other mandatory reports in strict compliance with
the relevant standards. The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of the INEDs and believes that their independence

is in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules.

The term of appointment of Mr. Wan Kam To, who resigned on 1 December
2013, and Ms. Ng See Wai, Rowena are for a period of three years
commencing from May 2011 and February 2014 respectively subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the

Company in accordance with the articles of association of the Company.

Under the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. The term of
appointment pursuant to the letters of appointment of Mr. Au-Yang Cheong
Yan, Peter and Mr. Wu Chi Keung is for a period of three years till May 2014.
They are currently not appointed for a specific term but subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in

accordance with the articles if association of the Company.

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The Company does not at present have any officer with the title
of chief executive officer (the “CEO") but instead the duties of a CEO are
performed by Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong, the managing director of the Company,

in the same capacity as the CEO of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERRE

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company adopted the rules set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules as the code of conduct for dealing in the securities of the
Company by the Directors (the “Required Standard of Dealings”). The
Company confirmed that, having made specific enquiry of the Directors, all
the Directors had complied with the Required Standard of Dealings and its

code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions during the year.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee in May 2011 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code of the GEM
Listing Rules. The remuneration committee comprises one executive Director
and three INEDs, namely Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong, Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan,
Peter, Mr. Wu Chi Keung and Ms. Ng See Wai, Rowena who was appointed
on 17 February 2014. The committee is chaired by Mr. Wu Chi Keung.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee are formulating
remuneration policies, making recommendations on the remuneration
packages of executive Directors and senior management and making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive
Directors. The Directors are remunerated with reference to their respective
duties and responsibility with the Company, the Company’s performance
and current market situation. The remuneration committee adopted the
model under the CG Code to make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration packages of individual executive Director and senior

management.

During the year, the remuneration committee reviewed the remuneration
policy and reviewed and approved the remuneration packages of the

executive Directors and senior management of the Company.

Directors are also the eligible participants under the share option scheme of
the Company as disclosed in the report of the directors in this report. Details
of emoluments of the Directors for the year are disclosed in note 12 to the
financial statements and the retirement benefit schemes are disclosed in note

13 to the financial statements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CEEHES

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee in May 2011 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code of the GEM Listing
Rules. The nomination committee comprises one executive Director and three
INEDs, namely Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong, Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan, Peter, Mr. Wu
Chi Keung and Ms. Ng See Wai, Rowena who was appointed on 17 February
2014. The committee is chaired by Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan, Peter.

The primary duties of the nomination committee are reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board, formulating relevant procedures
for nomination of Directors, identifying qualified individuals to become
members of the Board and making recommendation to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors. The nomination should be
taken into consideration of the nominee’s qualification, ability and potential

contributions to the Company.

During the year, the nomination committee reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board and the policy and procedures for nomination of

Directors and assessed the independence of an INED.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee in May 2011 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code of the GEM Listing Rules.
The audit committee comprises INEDs, namely, Mr. Wu Chi Keung, Mr. Au-
Yang Cheong Yan, Peter, Mr. Wan Kam To who resigned on 1 December
2013 and Ms. Ng See Wai, Rowena who was appointed on 17 February
2014. The committee is chaired by Mr. Wu Chi Keung.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to supervise the internal
control policies and the financial reporting systems and procedures of the
Company; to review the financial statements and reports of the Group;
and to review the terms of engagement and the scope of audit work of the

auditor.

During the year, the audit committee reviewed the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group with the management and the Company'’s
auditor; discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters
including the audited financial statements and unaudited interim financial
statements; and reviewed the unaudited quarterly financial statements and

the internal control of the Company with the management.
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for overseeing the preparation
of the financial statements which give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Group. The Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast significant

doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

AUDITOR AND THEIR REMUNERATION

The statement of the auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2014 is set out in the section “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this

report.

During the year, remuneration paid and payable to the auditor of the Group
are approximately HK$450,000 for audit services and HK$183,000 for non-

audit services, respectively.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) which sets
out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order to

enhance the effectiveness of the Board.

Pursuant to the Policy, the Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through
the consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and education background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The Board will review such objectives
from time to time to ensure their appropriateness and the progress made
towards achieving those objectives. The Company will also take into
consideration its own specific needs from time to time in determining the

optimum composition of the Board.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective internal
control system in order to safeguard the interests of the shareholders and
the assets of the Company against unauthorized use or disposition, ensuring
maintenance of proper books and records for the provision of reliable
financial information, and ensuring compliance with the relevant rules and

regulations.

During the year, the Company reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control systems which includes the policies, procedures, monitoring
and communication activities and standard of behaviour established for

safeguarding the interests of the shareholders of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, the shareholders,
holding at the date of deposit of the written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company, may require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to

convene such meeting, the requisitionists themselves may do so.

Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the Company to
convene a general meeting following the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph. The written requisition should be signed by the requisitionists and
deposited at the head office of the Company, specifying the shareholders’
contact details and the resolution intended to be put forward at general

meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

For including a resolution to propose a person for election as a Director
at general meeting, shareholders are requested to follow the articles of
association of the Company. A written notice signed by a shareholder
(other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at
the general meeting of the Company for which such notice is given of his
intention to propose such person for election and also a written notice signed
by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have been
lodged at the head office of the Company provided that the minimum length
of the period, during which such notices are given, shall be at least seven
days and that the period for lodgment of such notices shall commence on the
day after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting of the Company
appointed for such election and end no later than seven days prior to the
date of such general meeting. The written notice must state that person’s
biographical details as required by Rule 17.50(2) of the GEM Listing Rules.
The procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose a person for

election as a Director are posted on the Company's website.

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to
the Company’s branch share registrar. Shareholders and the investment
community may at any time make a request for the Company's information
to the extent that such information is publicly available. Shareholders may
also make enquiries to the Board by writing to the company secretary at the
Company's head office in Hong Kong at Room 2703, 27th Floor, Shui On
Centre, 6 — 8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of transparency is a key
to enhancing investor relations. It committed to a policy of open and timely

disclosure of corporate information to its shareholders and investment public.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business developments
and financial performance through its annual, interim and quarterly reports.
The corporate website of the Company (www.gca.com.hk) provides an

effective communication platform to the public and the shareholders.

During the year, there had been no significant change in the Company’s

constitutional documents.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited financial

statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the
principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set

out in note 17 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2014 and the state of affairs
of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the financial

statements on pages 46 to 135.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2014 (2013: HKO.5 cent).

REORGANISATION AND USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with limited
liability in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands on 3 December 2010. Pursuant to a reorganisation scheme to
rationalise the structure of the Group in preparation for the listing of the
Company'’s shares on the Stock Exchange, the Company became the holding
company of the companies now comprising the Group on 18 May 2011. On
31 May 2011, the shares of the Company have been listed on the GEM board
of the Stock Exchange.
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REORGANISATION AND USE OF PROCEEDS
(CONTINUED)

As part of the preparation for listing of the shares of the Company, the
Company implemented an issue of 125,000,000 new shares during its initial
public offering (the “IPO") and a capitalisation issue of 374,999,000 shares
in 2011. All such shares issued were ordinary shares and the 125,000,000
new shares were issued at par value of HK$0.01 per share. The gross
proceeds of the IPO received by the Company were approximately HK$90
million, and the net proceeds were approximately HK$78 million. Details
of the plan for the use of proceeds from the IPO are set out in the section
headed "“Reasons for the Placing and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus.
Details of use of proceeds since the listing are set out in the sections headed
“Use of the Net Proceeds from the Company'’s Placing” and “Comparison
of Business Objectives with Actual Business Progress” in the Management

Discussion & Analysis in this report.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited financial statements and the Prospectus, is set out on page 136.
This summary does not form part of the audited financial statements in this

report.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in the fixed assets of the Group during the year are set

out in note 16 to the financial statements in this report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year are set

out in note 29 to the financial statements in this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s articles
of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new

shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Q7

BEANFFEFREBRAR @)

ERARARG FTEBIIECHEP—R K
ANEER0MFERARBR ([EXAHE
A% 1) BRI - 74 & % 17125,000,0008% #7 A& 17 K&
B A E17374,999,0000% 08 15 ° Fr B % S B 8
TR 739 73 AR - B 3%125,000,0008 %7 A% {5
TYESREEA0.01AETTEIT- NARIZ B X
X A HR AR P15 R JE 48 55 49 /390,000,00078 7T -
i FT 15 308 F 58 49 478,000,000/ 7T BHIX A
MBS RIER RN EFBEHNBRER
ETRLE BHEMIP A RIS FIERGR] —6f -
BEMEHRIES FTARAREOFERR AR
ECEREHARRATAN [RARARZEES
HEREREFERE] R EBAFEERE
T E O] WE -

BB EREE

AEEBEREVRFE 2CTREERE
= RERIFERES CBEHNE136H )
BEARERYBHRRLBRER - ZMEL
FARBERERIEHRE 85 -

BEE&EE
NEBZETEERRFE 2 &
WEM MR FEI6 -

EREE 9NN

[N

ARRRARAFEEZERNZ EBF TN ARE
B SRR I RE29 -

BrRBEERE

RN R A E A2 40 Al AR A B FE A S P E )
FREBRRSES APGEREIMNARELEER
B2 REARBIRZLPIMREBRRR
SREHBRMD -

REEXRBEERLA
2014 &3



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWmE

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 30 to the financial statements and in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2014, the Company'’s reserve available for distribution to equity
holders comprising share premium account and retained profits, amounted
to approximately HK$72.1 million (2013: HK$77.7 million).

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

Related parties transactions of the Group during the year are disclosed in

note 36 to the financial statements in this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the year, sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted for
45.5% (2013: 51.1%) of the total sales for the year and sales to the largest
customer amounted to 11.3% (2013: 17.3%,).

None of Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the listed issuers share

capital) has any interest in the Group's five largest customers.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration committee was established for reviewing the Group's
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and
senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group's operating
results, individual performance and comparable market practices. The
Company has adopted a share option scheme as incentive to Directors and
eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out in the paragraph headed

“Share Option Scheme” below.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Director:

Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong (Managing Director)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan, Peter (Chairman)

Mr. Wu Chi Keung

Ms. Ng See Wai, Rowena (appointed on 17 February 2014)
Mr. Wan Kam To (resigned on 1 December 2013)

In accordance with articles 83 to 85 of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong and Ms. Ng See Wai, Rowena will retire by rotation and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The independent non-executive Directors, Ms. Ng See Wai,
Rowena and Mr. Wan Kam To (who resigned on 1 December 2013), are
appointed for a period of three years. The term of appointment pursuant to
the letters of appointment of Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan, Peter and Mr. Wu
Chi Keung is for a period of three years till May 2014.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from each
of the independent non-executive Directors as required under Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company considered all independent non-

executive Directors to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the

Group are set out on pages 13 to 17 of this report.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

Executive Director entered into a service contract with the Company for a
fixed term of three years commencing from May 2011 and will continue
thereafter. Mr. Wan Kam To, who resigned on 1 December 2013, and Ms.
Ng See Wai, Rowena, the independent non-executive Directors, entered
into letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from May 2011 and February 2014 respectively. The term
of appointment pursuant to the letters of appointment of Mr. Au-Yang
Cheong Yan, Peter and Mr. Wu Chi Keung is for a period of three years till
May 2014. All the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at annual general meeting of the Company pursuant to its articles of

association.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other

than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 36 to the financial statements, no Director had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance
to the business of the Group subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year to which the Company, its holding company, or any of its

subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or

existed during the year.
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2014, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register referred to therein or which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM

Listing Rules were as follows:

(a) Long positions in the shares of HK$0.01 each of
the Company

EERFETHRAERADRAR
HAEBEE S 2 K% HE KRG
RESEZERKXR

2014563 A318  RAREEFERFETHAE
RARFREBEEZE (TERAFHFRPEK
Bl (T35 5 R EIE GG ) EXVED) KR % - 7
i REHF  BAREESRBAEEHIEXV
BETRESD B G AR B R
R#E (BREESREESRAEKRINZSE
B E RBRREANER RAR) JIRE
&5 KB IR0 83528 B A Z K BIFTIE 2
MRz e kAR - IRIRAIER ET R
A 585.46 %5676 K B B A AR A J B A2
FroiEsm KRBT :

(a) RAEQFZREE0.01E T 2K
BzHER

Approximate

percentage

Number of of issued

Name of director Nature of interest shares held share capital
IEEBITRA

EEpE EEtE RO E BMABE D
Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong (“Mr. Ip”) (Note 1) Interest in controlled corporation 305,850,000 60.95%

R ([HEE]) (HET) RESEE MRS

Note:

1. 305,850,000 shares were held by Brilliant One Holdings Limited
("Brilliant One"”) which was wholly-owned by GCA Professional
Services Group Limited ("GCA Professional”), formerly known as
Genius Ideas International Ltd. GCA Professional was owned as to
51% by Smart Pick Investments Limited (“Smart Pick”). Smart Pick was
owned as to 89.61% by GC Holdings Limited (“GC Holdings"”) which
was wholly-owned by Mr. Ip.
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Long positions in the shares of associated (b)
corporations

EERFETBRAEREAATR
HEB LB 2 KR© HERSG
REHEEZRAE &)

REBEZERD 2F R

Approximate

percentage of
Name of interest in
associated Nature of Number of associated
Name of director corporation interest shares held corporation
EREEEE
BEBL
ESpg HEEEER BEitE FEROBE Aok
Mr. Ip (Note 1) Brilliant One Interest in controlled corporation 200 100%
BRAE (K1) Brilliant One REHEERN ER
Mr. Ip (Note 1) GCA Professional Interest in controlled corporation 5,100 51%
RRHE (K1) BEHY REGEEMER
Mr. Ip (Note 1) Smart Pick Interest in controlled corporation 8,961 89.61%
BRAE (K1) Smart Pick REHEERN ER
Mr. Ip (Note 1) GC Holdings Beneficial owner 1 100%
EhE (K1) GC Holdings EGBEAA
Note: Hat -

1. The Company was owned as to 60.95% by Brilliant One. Brilliant One

was wholly-owned by GCA Professional which was owned as to 51%
by Smart Pick. Smart Pick was owned as to 89.61% by GC Holdings.

GC Holdings was wholly-owned by Mr. Ip.
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
(CONTINUED)

() Long positions in the underlying shares of the
Company under equity derivatives

BEERFETBRAEREAATR
HEBEIER 2KRH HER G
REHEEZRAE &)

() BRERAITETERAATHEE
R zHER

Approximate

Number of percentage of

Nature of underlying issued share

Name of director interest shares held capital

FR#FHERE HEBTRA

BEEnE EEME BRBEHA BREDL

Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan, Peter (Note 1) Beneficial owner 200,000 0.04%
BSRBSEE (BFFT) ExlAA

Mr. Wu Chi Keung (Note 1) Beneficial owner 200,000 0.04%

AR ST (HFET) ExlAA
Note:

1. The Directors were granted options under the share option scheme of
the Company (“Scheme”), details of which are set out in the section
“Share Option Scheme” below.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, none of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they are taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2014, the following persons had interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which were notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO and entered in the register maintained by the Company

pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in the shares of HK$0.01 each of the

FERRRAQT R KHEER
H2EBERXE

2014634318 » AN ATRARRA R K48
R PR IRIRE S R E RO EXVEE2
R 835 #E FE AR T KB A2 BT 2 R #R 5l0%k
B U RARIRE 5 M HI B R0 2833616 B ad 8k
AARMEFOELMAZERABLT

RARXFZREEOEBTTZRM 2

Company

"R

Approximate

percentage
Number of of issued
Name of shareholder Nature of interest shares held share capital
HEBRITRA
RRAH EEME RO EE BREs L
Brilliant One (Note 1) Beneficial owner 305,850,000 60.95%
Brilliant One (#72£1) EnEAA
GCA Professional (Note 1) Interest in controlled corporation 305,850,000 60.95%
EERE (M) REtEE O ER
Smart Pick (Note 1) Interest in controlled corporation 305,850,000 60.95%
Smart Pick (#73£1) ZEGEEER
Easy Gain Development Limited Interest in controlled corporation 305,850,000 60.95%
(“Easy Gain") (Note 1) ZEGEEER
Easy Gain Development Limited
([Easy Gain]) (Ht7E1)
GC Holdings (Note 1) Interest in controlled corporation 305,850,000 60.95%
GC Holdings (#15#1) ZEHEE R
Mr. Ip (Note 1) Interest in controlled corporation 305,850,000 60.95%

TEEE (MatT)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Long positions in the shares of HK$0.01 each of the
Company (Continued)

FERRARAQTRHD RERBERK
rREZRRE &)

RAQXTEREEIIE T KRG Z
S —RE )

Approximate

percentage
Number of of issued
Name of shareholder Nature of interest shares held share capital
HEBTRA
RRAHE EmME RO EE BHES L
Mr. Wong Chi Keung Interest in controlled corporation 305,850,000 60.95%
("Mr. Wong") (Note 1) REEE O ER
| EAE ([EEED) (K1)
Mr. Cheng Kam Por Beneficial owner 35,315,940 7.04%
EPERIR e BEmEAA
City Gold Limited (Note 2) Having a security interest 305,850,000 60.95%
City Gold Limited (#7#£2) HERERR
So Shu Fai (Note 2) Having a security interest 305,850,000 60.95%

ERAIE (A 7E2) BERZER
Notes:

1. Brilliant One was wholly-owned by GCA Professional which was owned as
to 51% by Smart Pick and 49% by Easy Gain. Smart Pick was owned as
to 10.39% by Easy Gain and 89.61% by GC Holdings which was wholly-
owned by Mr. Ip. Easy Gain was wholly-owned by Mr. Wong.

2. City Gold Limited was wholly controlled by So Shu Fai.
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GC HoldingsBll R EE e 4 2 & A ° Easy Gain
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, the Company had not been
notified by any persons who had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to

Section 336 of the SFO.

INTERESTS OF OTHER PERSONS

As at 31 March 2014, other than the interests in shares of the Company and
its associated corporations held by the Directors, the chief executives and the
substantial shareholders of the Company stated above, there were no other
persons with interests recorded in the register required to be kept by the

Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors, and the substantial shareholders had any interests in
any business, which competed with or might compete with the business of

the Group.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

As to attract and retain the eligible persons, to provide additional incentive
to them and to promote the success of the business of the Group, the
Company conditionally approved and adopted the Scheme by a resolution
of the Company on 18 May 2011 whereby the Board was authorised to
grant options (the “Options”) to subscribe for the shares of the Company
(the “Shares”) to the eligible participant, including Director and employee,
as defined in the Scheme. The Scheme is valid for a period of ten years

commencing from the adoption date as defined in the Scheme.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEEHE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

A summary of the movements of the outstanding Options under the Scheme

during the year is as follows:

Number of Options

BREHA

Outstanding

as at

1 April

Eligible participant 2013

R2013%
4A1A

RERAL MATTE

Granted
during
the year

REARE

Outstanding

Cancelled as at
during 31 March
the year 2014

Exercised
during
the year

Lapsed
during
the year

20145
38318
RERTE  RERXR  REAZH WRTE

B IR RER & (¢

\
3/

Py R BN RITE B RE 2B
EHEMT

Exercise
price

per Share
HKS

SRITEE
T

Date of grant

HHES

Exercisable period

s

Directors

Bz

Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan,
Peter
BERELE

200,000

Mr. Wu Chi Keung 200,000

=Yt

Mr. Wan Kam To 200,000

FRELE

Employees

&8

3,650,000

Employees

&8

1,800,000

200,000

200,000

- 200,000 - -

900,000

360,000 - 2,390,000

900,000 450,000 - 450,000

37

0.20

0.20

0.20

0.20

0.20

6.1.2012

201241768

6.1.2012

20121768

6.1.2012

20121768

6.1.2012

201241 A6H

6.1.2012

201251768

18.5.2012-17.5.2021
(both dates inclusive)
2012455184 220214573178
(BEERMA)

18.5.2012-17.5.2021
(both dates inclusive)
201245818H 22021457178
(BEERMAE)

18.5.2012-17.5.2021
(both dates inclusive)
201245518H 220214573178
(pHEEEMA)

a) One-third of the 2,010,000 Options are
exercisable from 30.1.2012 to 17.5.2021.
One-third of the Options are exercisable
from 1.1.2013 to 17.5.2021 and the
remaining one-third of the Options are
exercisable from 1.1.2014 t0 17.5.2021.
HAR=5-2,010,000(7 B REA #2012
FIANEZNNEATEAR =S
—BRETHR2013F1F1B 2202155
ATEAR RESB=H-BRETR
2014F1A1BZ202155A178 176 -

b) One-half of the 80,000 Options are

exercisable from 1.1.2013 to 17.5.2021
and the remaining one-half of the
Options are exercisable from 1.1.2014 to
17.5.2021.
Heh 5 —80,000(7 Bk AT 420135
TRBZ201E5R17R116  RET 5
— L BRETR201451 B1BZE2015
SR178%f#E.

©) 300,000 Options are exercisable from
1.1.2014 10 17.5.2021
300,000 B B & [ 54201451 BB &
21F5/178176

One-half of the Options are exercisable
from 30.1.2012 to 17.5.2021 and the
remaining one-half of the Options are
exercisable from 1.1.2013 t0 17.5.2021.

—+BRETHR201251 308 202155
RTBAE RAETS—LBRETL
01351 1A Z2021 558178776
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Number of Options
BREHE

Outstanding
asat Granted Exercised Lapsed
1 April during during during
Eligible participant 2013 the year the year the year

R2013%
481R
GEEAL MAGE  REARE  REATE  REAXR

Exercise
price
per Share

HKS

SRITEE
o

B ERTE

Date of grant

EHAH

/

Exercisable period

s

Employees 330,000 - - -
ks

Employees 240,000 - - 120,000
ks

Employees 240,000 - - -
ks

Employees 60,000 - - -
s

Employees 330,000 - - 50,000
]

Employees 450,000 - - 450,000
B2

GreaterChina Professional Services Limited
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020

020

020

0.20

0.20

0.20

6.1.2012

20121768

6.1.2012

20121768

6.1.2012

201251768

6.1.2012

201241 A6H

6.1.2012

20125168

6.1.2012

201251768

One-third of the Options are exercisable from
1.7.2012 to 17.5.2021. One-third of the
Options are exercisable from 1.1.2013 to
17.5.2021 and the remaining one-third of
the Options are exercisable from 1.1.2014
10 17.5.2021.

A BRETR01257A182201F
SRR =H—BRETR2013F
1R1BZ2021F5A17R17  RE#=
A—BRETR014F1 AIRZ2011F
SA17RTE.

One-third of the Options are exercisable from
1.1.2013 to 17.5.2021. One-third of the
Options are exercisable from 1.1.2014 to
17.5.2021 and the remaining one-third of
the Options are exercisable from 1.1.2015
10 17.5.2021.

=H—ERETR013F1 F1BE201F
SRR =H—BRETR2014%
1R1BZ201F5A17R 176 REH#=
A—EBRETR201551 A1IBZ201F
SA17RTE.

1.7.2012-17.5.2021
(both dates inclusive)
201257R1BZ2021558178
(BEERMA)

1.1.2013-17.5.2021
(both dates inclusive)
201351 F1BZ2021558178
(BEERMA)

30.1.2012 - 17.5.2021
(both dates inclusive)
2012618300 22021457178
(BEERMA)

One-third of the Options are exercisable from
1.1.2013 to0 17.5.2021. One-third of the
Options are exercisable from 1.1.2014 to
17.5.2021 and the remaining one-third of
the Options are exercisable from 1.1.2015
10 17.5.2021.

=H-BRETR013F1 81820215
SAVTRTTE: =5 —BRETR2014%
(BIEEYIEEIVEN et
A —BRETR01551 B1B 22015
SRR
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e A .
SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) BRERTE (@)
Number of Options
BREHE
Outstanding Outstanding
asat Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled asat Exercise
1 April during during during during 31 March price
Eligible participant 2013 the year the year the year the year 2014 perShare  Date of grant Exercisable period
HKS
R2013E 120145
4818 38318
RERAL HATE  REARE  RERTE  RERXR  REREEH WATE SRORE RiLAM T8
B
Employees 900,000 - - - - 900,000 020  6.1.2012 One-third of the Options are exercisable from
-1 1.7.2013 to 17.5.2021. One-third of the
Options are exercisable from 1.1.2014 to
17.5.2021 and the remaining one-third of
the Options are exercisable from 1.1.2015
10 17.5.2021.
201217868 ZH—BRETR0135F7 5182201 F
SAVTBTTE =S —BRETR2014%
1R1BZ2021F5A17R17  RE#=
A—ERETR201581 FIBZ201F
SRR
8,600,000 - 1,800,000 1,630,000 - 5,170,000
Note: B

1. The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before the 1. =8 TRERTEEEEY B 1RG5
date on which the Options were exercised by employees during the year is INEEE U B 50.4585 T -
HK$0.4.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

As at the date of this report, the total number of Shares available for issue
under the Scheme is 42,990,000 Shares and represents 8.56% of the issued

share capital of the Company.

An offer for the grant of Options must be accepted within twenty-one days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount payable by
the grantee of an Option to the Company on acceptance of the offer for the
grant of an Option is HK$1.00. The subscription price of a Share in respect
of any particular Option granted under the Scheme shall be a price solely
determined by the Board and notified to a participant and shall be at least the
highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the Option; (ii) the average
of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations sheets for the 5 business days immediately preceding the date of
grant of the Option; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share on the offer date

of the Option.

Unless approved by the Company’s shareholders, the total number of Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the Options granted to each grantee
(including both exercised and outstanding Options) in any 12-month period

must not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue.

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which Options may be granted
at any time under the Scheme together with Options which may be granted
under any other share option schemes for the time being of the Group shall
not exceed such number of Shares as equals 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company at the date of approval of the Scheme. The Company may
at any time refresh such limit, subject to the shareholders’ approval and issue
of a circular in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules, provided that the
total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
Options granted and yet to be exercised under all the share option schemes
of the Company does not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue at the time. An
Option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any
time during a period as the Board may determine which shall not exceed ten
years from the date of grant subject to the provisions of early termination

thereof.
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COMPLIANCE ADVISOR'S INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2014 neither Grand Vinco Capital Limited nor any of its
directors, employees or associates had any interests in the shares of the
Company or any member of the Group, or any right to subscribe for or to
nominate persons to subscribe for the shares of the Company or any member

of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company applied the code provisions as set out in the CG Code
contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules. During the year, the
Company complied with the code provisions of the CG Code, save for the

exception explained in the Corporate Governance Report of this report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company's total issued

share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

CORPORATE, SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company has made substantial efforts to fulfill its corporate social
responsibilities, by promoting sustainable growth within the Group and in
the society. The Group is committed to provide a safe, healthy, and enriching
working environment for its employees. The Group hosted various after-work
activities or sporting events for its employees during the year to promote the
importance of work-life balance. The Group has attached importance to the
promotion of anti-corruption and integrity promotion system. The Group
emphasizes code of conduct which forms part of the staff manual. Employees
are required to act with integrity and to report any suspected bribery and
money laundering cases. Whistle-blowing procedures are in place which
allows direct reporting to the chairman of the audit committee. In addition,
employees are required to declare any conflict of interests when performing
their duty. During the year, the Group’s professional teams have delivered
speeches as invited by professional institutions such as CPA Australia,
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Association of
International Accountants — Hong Kong Branch, The Hong Kong Institute
of Directors and The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies. The Group

takes on interns from local universities every year.
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CORPORATE, SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

The Group emphasizes the importance of energy conservation and
environmental protection as part of its corporate culture and encourages
its employees to minimize the use of paper by promoting digitalization of
documents and better use of waste paper. The Group has also participated in
a carbon reduction program by replacing all traditional fluorescent lamp with

energy-saving lamp within the working area.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of events after the reporting period are set out in note 37 to the

financial statements.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2014 were audited
by the Company’s auditor, RSM Nelson Wheeler, who shall retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Ip Kwok Kwong

Managing Director

Hong Kong
24 June 2014
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@) RSM

Audit - Tax - Advisory

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
GREATERCHINA PROFESSIONAL SERVICES LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of GreaterChina
Professional Services Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 46 to 135, which comprise
the consolidated and Company statements of financial position as at 31
March 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary

of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion.

Basis for qualified opinion

As set out in note 20 to the financial statements, as at 31 March 2014,
trade receivables net of allowances of HK$7,118,000 was approximately
HK$112,920,000. Included in the trade receivables before allowances
were balances of approximately HK$59,358,000, of which approximately
HK$10,415,000 and HK$48,834,000 were aged over two years and
within one to two years respectively. These balances are due from seven
customers. Up to the date of this report, we have inspected settlements of
approximately HK$10,097,000 with respect to these trade receivables, of
which HK$6,000,000 are settlements for receivables aged over two years
and approximately HK$4,097,000 are settlements for receivables aged
within one to two years. The Group has made allowances of approximately
HK$4,415,000 with respect to these trade receivables, representing
the unsettled balances aged over two years. The total amount of trade
receivables unsettled on the date of this report due within one to two years
is approximately HK$44,737,000. Since the settlements of these balances are
slow, we have uncertainty about the recoverability of these trade receivables,
although management is endeavouring to recover the balances due from
these customers. Accordingly, we are unable to satisfy ourselves on the
adequacy of the allowances made on these trade receivables as at 31 March
2014. Any adjustment to the allowance for trade receivables might have a
consequential effect on the results for the year and net assets as at 31 March
2014.
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Qualified opinion

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter as described
in the basis for qualified opinion paragraph, the consolidated financial
statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 March 2014, and of the Group's results and
cash flow for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the

disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

RSM Nelson Wheeler
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 June 2014
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For the year ended 31 March 2014

B 220149F3 31 H1F FE
2014 2013
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
20144 20134
B 5 FERT FHIT

Turnover e 6 88,871 96,231
Cost of services BRI AR AR (22,964) (29,520)
Gross profit EF 65,907 66,711
Other income H A 4 A 7 4,149 2,547
Marketing expenses TS HEER X (91) (184)
Administrative expenses THAX (38,679) (36,236)
Other operating expenses H At & B X (4,893) (1,801)
Profit from operations mEERR 26,393 31,037
Finance costs B KA 9 (20) (15)
Share of results of associates and DIEEE RN E R

a joint venture —H&ERAIESA (1,541) (239)
Gain on disposal of an associate HE—REE QR AT 2,460 =
Impairment of an investment in R—EBE QAR 2R ERE

an associate (184) =
Profit before tax R A 2 A 27,108 30,783
Income tax credit/(expense) FrefiiEe, (Fx) 10 4,174 (3,854)
Profit for the year attributable to KAFEE ABMLEE BT

owners of the Company 11 31,282 26,929
Other comprehensive income, Ht2ERA Bk

net of tax:
Items that may be reclassified to A]BEEFT A2 187 A9 E H

profit or loss
Exchange differences on translating BME SN HE N E R

foreign operations (7) (45)
Total comprehensive income KAFEBEARLEEE

for the year attributable to EAELL PN L

owners of the Company 31,275 26,884
Earnings per share BRER 15

Basic (HK cents) EAR (B 6.25 5.39

Diluted (HK cents) 58 OBl 6.22 5.39




At 31 March 2014

R2014F3H31H
2014 2013
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
20144 20134
B = FET T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y R NEE 16 1,368 1,689
Investments in associates and REE AT R—HEEAFR
a joint venture wE 18 - 23,588
Available-for-sale financial asset AItHESREE 19 2,241 2,241
Deposit paid for acquisition of an UL HE — I & A A
associate i wit e 325 =
3,934 27,518
Current assets REBEE
Trade receivables Z 5 FEWRIE 20 112,920 79,159
Prepayments, deposits and ERNFIE - 'E R
other receivables H b U FKIB 33,346 8,231
Financial asset at fair value ERAREBETAEESN
through profit or loss TREE 21 - 206
Amount due from a related party JE Wt A 3 75 3K 0B 22 4,080 1,370
Pledged bank deposit BEHIRITER 23 1,022 1,014
Bank and cash balances RIT RN B L% 23 4,024 19,458
155,392 109,438
Current liabilities REBAEE
Trade payables B 5 FE FIE 24 4,820 5,082
Accruals and other payables FEETIE B R E M B RUE 3,412 3,761
Amount due to a director Bt —REEHIE 25 - 375
Obligations under finance leases BMEHREEM 26 167 162
Current tax liabilities mBRIBEE 3,029 8,731
11,428 18,111
Net current assets RBEEFE 143,964 91,327
Total assets less current liabilities EEHREBERRBAERE 147,898 118,845




At 31 March 2014

R2014F3H31H

2014 2013
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
20144 20134
B 5 FERT FHIT

Non-current liabilities FnBEE
Obligations under finance leases REMEERME 26 - 167
NET ASSETS EERE 147,898 118,678

Capital and reserves EXRFHE
Share capital N 29 5,018 5,000
Reserves & 30 142,880 113,678
TOTAL EQUITY EmaE 147,898 118,678

Approved by the Board of Directors on 24 June 2014

Ip Kwok Kwong
EEX
Director

BF

EEeMN2014F6 A24R &

Au-Yang Cheong Yan, Peter

BERE

Director

BFE



At 31 March 2014

R2014F3H31H
2014 2013
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
20145 20134
B = FET T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B A RRIRE 17 - =
Current assets REEE
Other receivables Hfth fE UL FRIB 303 479
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE W BT B R BRI 17 80,306 71,063
Pledged bank deposit BEHIRITER 23 1,022 1,014
Bank and cash balances RIT RN B L% 23 68 11,052
81,699 83,608
Current liabilities REAE
Other payables H fth FE A 518 279 221
Amount due to subsidiaries JEAHFfY B A R FUE 17 3,878 =
4,157 221
Net current assets RBEEFEE 77,542 83,387
NET ASSETS EEFE 77,542 83,387
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital [ 29 5,018 5,000
Reserves ] 30(b) 72,524 78,387
TOTAL EQUITY EREAE 77,542 83,387

Approved by the Board of Directors on 24 June 2014

Ip Kwok Kwong
EBEX
Director

EF

EEEMN2014F6 A24R L&

Au-Yang Cheong Yan, Peter

BERE

Director

BF



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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For the year ended 31 March 2014

ELZE2014F3A31HIFFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
KA EEAES
Foreign
currency Share-based
Share Capital translation payment
Share premium reserve reserve Retained reserve
capital  (note 30(c)(iii))  (note 30(c)(ii))  (note 30(c)(i) earnings  (note 30(c)iv))  Total equity
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
DY
AERZ
R E BAfEE MBERRE RREE
(Fii3E30 (FizE30 GBED (FizE30
R (cXii)) (©i)) (c)i)) REBRF Q) BRAE
THET TET TET THT THT FTHT FTHET
At 1 April 2012 #201264718 5,000 71,468 5,359 = 14,246 340 96,413
Total comprehensive income FEZARAER
for the year - - - (45) 26,929 - 26,884
Recognition of share-based payments HELAR(A A ERE 2 (3% - - - - - 373 373
Effect of forfeiture of /xqﬁl BRLZEREZYE
share options granted - - - - 42 (42) -
Share issued pursuant to exercise of  RIEBE AR IE 2 1T BT 2 B 1D
share options - 10 - - - ) 8
2012 final dividend 0125 KBRS - - - - (5,000) = (5,000)
Changes in equity for the year FEERE = 10 = (45) 21,971 329 22,265
At 31 March 2013 and 1 April 2013 #2013F3A318 &
2013F4A18 5,000 71,478 5,359 (45) 36,217 669 118,678
Total comprehensive income FEZAKALE
for the year - - - (7) 31,282 - 31,275
Recognition of share-based payments FE=R A BR 17 5 &t Zﬁm - - - - - 85 85
Effect of forfeiture of RBER L ERELZE
share options granted - - - - 128 (128) -
Share issued pursuant to exercise of R IEEBIIEZ 1TEEITZRG
share options 18 506 - - - (164) 360
2013 final dividend (note 14) 2013F RER S (M5E14) - - - - (2,500) - (2,500)
Changes in equity for the year FERREEY 18 506 - @) 28,910 (207) 29,220
At 31 March 2014 #20144F3A31H 5,018 71,984 5,359 (52) 65,127 462 147,898
GreaterChina Professional Services Limited 50

Annual Report 2014



For the year ended 31 March 2014

B FE2014F3A31 H 1L F&
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
20145 20134
FERT FHIT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES BRETHRESRE
Profit before tax B 50 i A 27,108 30,783
Adjustments for: AT ZIEFE :
Share of results of associates and DIiHEE AT R
a joint venture —EEERNFERA 1,541 239
Loss on disposals of property, LEWE  BERZEZEE
plant and equipment - 162
Gain on disposal of an associate HE—RE & QR TR E (2,460) =
Impairment of an investment in an associate R—EEE AR 2 IRERE 184 =
Allowance for trade receivables B S EBGRIB R 5,072 851
Allowance for amount due from fEW — & & R B B G
a joint venture - 1,099
Bad debts written off 322 AR 1 85 31 -
Reversal of allowance for trade receivables 2 5 EYGRIERER T (210) (149)
Equity-settled share-based payment RSB ARG RER 2
expenses MRAX 85 373
Depreciation e 619 641
Finance costs B 75 X AR 20 15
Interest income B U A 11) (124)
Operating profit before working capital changes EEESBEAKL L ET 31,979 33,890
Increase in trade receivables B 5 e W IE L N (38,653) (40,454)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and BRI ek
other receivables HL i Ui SR IE A 0 (617) (3,755)
Decrease in financial asset at fair value RAREEFABEA
through profit or loss EREERD 206 1,263
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables Z S mE CRd) /1 (262) 3,110
Decrease in accruals and other payables FEETIE B K H M sRIER A (501) (2,065)
Cash used in operations KEmAR S (7,848) (8,011)
Income tax paid EFEH (1,527) (161)
Finance costs paid [EEREUR I (20) (15)
Net cash used in operating activities KETEE TR F 58 (9,395) (8,187)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREETHRESRE
Refund to a director for the investment in available-  #t A] fit i & 4 g0 & & &Y
for-sale financial asset BER—BEEER (375) =
Deposit paid for investment in an associate MABE RN EMTNZS (325) =
Dividend income received from an associate B — RS A R E Z IR A - 535
Acquisition of an associate g B — R EgE 2 R ) - (281)
Investment in a joint venture SEPEIREAE - (2,469)
Investment in available-for-sale financial asset RAEHESREENRE - (1,866)
Interest received 2 UF B 11 124
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEWE BEMZE (298) (282)
Increase in pledged bank deposit B ERITE RGN (8) (10)
Net cash used in investing activities REEZBMACREFE (995) (4,249)




For the year ended 31 March 2014

B ZE2014F3531H 1 F/F
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
2014F 20134
FHT FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES METHRERE
Advance to a joint venture D -INCIE-FN (2,710) _
Exercise of share options B 2171 360 8
Repayment for finance leases EBEMERE (162) (157)
Dividends paid ENRRE (2,500) (5,000)
Net cash used in financing activities BMEFTB AR FHE (5,012) (5,149)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH BeRESEEYRIFE
EQUIVALENTS (15,402) (17,585)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EREHNTE (32) (30)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FINRERESEEY
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 19,458 37,073
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERNBESRESEEY
AT END OF YEAR 4,024 19,458
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH ReREBESEEYWH W (HiE23)
EQUIVALENTS (note 23)
Bank and cash balances RITRIRE 4,024 19,458




For the year ended 31 March 2014
B 220149F3 31 H1F FE

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law as an exempted company with limited liability on 3
December 2010. The address of its registered office of the Cayman
Islands is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The address of its principal place of
business is Room 2703, 27th Floor, Shui On Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities

of its subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, as at 31 March 2014,
Brilliant One Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands (“B.V.l."), is the immediate parent; GC Holdings Limited,
a company incorporated in the B.V.l., is the ultimate parent and Mr.
Ip Kwok Kwong is the ultimate controlling party (the “Controlling

Shareholder”) of the Company.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 31 May 2011.

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") that are
relevant to its operations and effective for its accounting year beginning
on 1 April 2013. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS");
and Interpretations. The adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs
did not result in significant changes to the Group’s accounting policies,
presentation of the Group's financial statements and amounts reported

for the current year and prior years except as stated below.

AARR2010F 12838 RBE R AE
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Ale ARAAINHR 2 HSEMMRFRLR
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
B 22014F3H31H IFFZ

(a) Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of

Financial Statements”

Amendments to HKAS 1 titled Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income introduce new terminology for statement
of comprehensive income and income statement that has been
applied by the Group. Under the amendments to HKAS 1, a
statement of comprehensive income is renamed as a statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and an income
statement is renamed as a statement of profit or loss. The
amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit or loss
and other comprehensive income in either a single statement or

in two separate but consecutive statements.

The amendments to HKAS 1 require additional disclosures to be
made in the other comprehensive income section such that items
of other comprehensive income are grouped into two categories:
(a) items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss;
and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
when specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the same

basis.

The amendments have been applied retrospectively, and hence
the presentation of items of other comprehensive income has
been modified to reflect the change. Other than the above
mentioned presentation changes, the application of the
amendments to HKAS 1 did not result in any impact on profit
or loss, other comprehensive income and total comprehensive

income.

(a) BRETERE1R [ MHH
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
i 22014F3431H IFFZ

(b) HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities”

HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities” specifies
the disclosure requirements for subsidiaries, joint arrangements
and associates, and introduces new disclosure requirements for

unconsolidated structured entities.

The adoption of HKFRS 12 only affected the disclosures relating
to the Group's subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements in
the consolidated financial statements. HKFRS 12 has been applied

retrospectively.

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective. The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the impact of these new HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state
whether these new HKFRSs would have a material impact on its results
of operations and financial position. The Group does not plan to adopt

these standards prior to their mandatory effective date.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of

The Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of derivatives which are

carried at their fair values.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
B 22014F3H31H IFFZ

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain key assumptions and estimates. It also
requires the directors to exercise their judgement in the process of
applying the accounting policies. The areas involving critical judgements
and areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to these

financial statements are disclosed in note 4 to the financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these

financial statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
March. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has control.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
The Group has power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities,

i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting
rights as well as potential voting rights held by other parties.
A potential voting right is considered only if the holder has the

practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date

the control ceases.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
B Z20149F3 31 H 1k FE

(a) Consolidation (Continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a loss
of control represents the difference between (i) the fair value of
the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any investment
retained in that subsidiary and (i) the Company’s share of the
net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill relating
to that subsidiary and any related accumulated foreign currency

translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries
not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position and consolidated statement of changes in
equity within equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between the non-controlling shareholders

and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling shareholders even if this results in the non-controlling

interests having a deficit balance.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
B 220149F3 31 H1F FE

(a)

(b)

Consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised

directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position the investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less allowance for impairment
losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the

Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Business combinations (other than under
common control) and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition of
a subsidiary in a business combination. The cost of acquisition is
measured at the acquisition-date fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred and contingent
consideration. Acquisition-related costs are recognised as
expenses in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the
services are received. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their acquisition-date

fair values.

(a)

(b)
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
i 22014F3431H IFFZ

(b) Business combinations (other than under

(9]

common control) and goodwill (Continued)

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s share
of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the Company’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit
or loss as a gain on bargain purchase which is attributed to the

Company.

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of an entity but is not
control or joint control over those policies. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible, including potential voting rights held by other
entities, are considered when assessing whether the Group has
significant influence. In assessing whether a potential voting right
contributes to significant influence, the holder’s intention and

financial ability to exercise or convert that right is not considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements by the equity method and is initially
recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the
associate in an acquisition are measured at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is
included in the carrying amount of the investment and is tested
for impairment together with the investment at the end of
each reporting period when there is objective evidence that the
investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group's share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of

acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss.
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(c) Associates (Continued)

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and its share of
the post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive income
is recognised in the consolidated reserves. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount
of the investment. When the Group's share of losses in an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate. If the associate subsequently reports
profits, the Group resumes recognising its share of those profits
only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not

recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results in a
loss of significant influence represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value
of any investment retained in that associate and (ii) its carrying
amount plus any related accumulated foreign currency translation
reserve. If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in
a joint venture, the Group continues to apply the equity method

and does not remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interests
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted

by the Group.
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(d) Joint arrangements

A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which two or more
parties have joint control. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control. Relevant activities are
activities that significantly affect the returns of the arrangement.
When assessing joint control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties. A potential voting right is considered only if the holder has
the practical ability to exercise that right.

A joint arrangement is either a joint operation or a joint venture.
A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the assets,
and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. A
joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of

the arrangement.

In relation to its interest in a joint operation, the Group recognises
in its consolidated financial statements, its assets, including its
share of any assets held jointly; its liabilities, including its share of
any liabilities incurred jointly; its revenue from the sale of its share
of the output arising from the joint operation; its share of the
revenue from the sale of the output by the joint operation; and
its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly,
in accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular assets,

liabilities, revenues and expenses.
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(d) Joint arrangements (Continued)

Investment in a joint venture is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements by the equity method and is initially
recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the joint
venture in an acquisition are measured at their fair values at
the acquisition date. The excess of the cost of acquisition over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the joint venture’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the investment and
is tested for impairment together with the investment at the end
of each reporting period when there is objective evidence that the
investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group's share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of

acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss.

The Group's share of a joint venture’s post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and its share
of the post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised
in the consolidated reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group's share of losses in a joint venture
equals or exceeds its interest in the joint venture, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the joint venture. If the joint venture subsequently
reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its share of those
profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses

not recognised.

d) 88 =8 Hm

JiN

=l
AR

BERRZRE HIRERER A
BMBRE - L IREATER
S—ERBPZAZERRZAHEA
BENMBBERERKBERBNAAE
BT E - e BB A AR I AN SR B PR A
BERRZABAEERABZIA
AFE RIZEBERATEAR-BHE
TETARE 2 REE YR ATEHE
BRTIZARECRERR SRS
HIR & R % AR BT TR BRI © i
AEBEEARANEERABZA
RFERREEEA - AERERK
RiR A B ER

REEEEE LR FIUEER RS
EBiER A ERER  MHEBEUE
‘FFBEBAINGRA FEENER i
BrzZ2FEPNKEZRMENE
HAE - A EEGEERFIEE
HERIEZREREERA 2 ER

(B HE (R H fih SR 410 W 30 ) -
BIREE N E — PR EE  RIER
SEEELABEESRKEEAAIN
o fna @ N al RgeEaf - BlAR
SEEREEGERNESNHEEG
RIER 2 BB 1% - 7T e IIE R HE
G225 mH e



For the year ended 31 March 2014
i 22014F3431H IFFZ

(d) Joint arrangements (Continued)

(e)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a joint venture that results in
a loss of joint control represents the difference between (i) the
fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of
any investment retained in that joint venture and (ii) its carrying
amount plus any related accumulated foreign currency translation
reserve. If an investment in a joint venture becomes an investment
in an associate, the Group continues to apply the equity method

and does not remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interests in
the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of joint ventures have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.

Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group'’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the "functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the

Company's functional and presentation currency.
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(e) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(ir)

(i)

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial

statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency on initial recognition using the exchange
rates prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rates at the end of each reporting period.
Gains and losses resulting from this translation policy are

recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values in
foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates at

the dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in other comprehensive income, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of that

gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
that have a functional currency different from the
Company's presentation currency are translated into the

Company's presentation currency as follows:

—  Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at

the date of that statement of financial position;
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(e) Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(i) Translation on consolidation (Continued)

— Income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates for the period (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are translated at

the exchange rates on the transaction dates); and

—  All resulting exchange differences are recognised in the
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the

foreign currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities and of
borrowings are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve.
When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences
are reclassified to consolidated profit or loss as part of the

gain or loss on disposal.

(f) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit

or loss during the period in which they are incurred.
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(f)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at
rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values over
the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal

useful lives are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 4 10 5 years
Furniture and equipment 5 years
Office equipment 4 1o 5 years
Motor vehicle 4 years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each

reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying

amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leases
The Group as lessee
(i)  Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group all the
risks and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for
as operating leases. Lease payments (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are recognised as an expense on a

straight-line basis over the lease term.
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(g) Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

(ii)

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group all the risks
and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as
finance leases. At the commencement of the lease term, a
finance lease is capitalised at the lower of the fair value of
the leased asset and the present value of the minimum lease

payments, each determined at the inception of the lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
statement of financial position as finance lease payable.
Lease payments are apportioned between the finance
charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The
finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease
term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on

the remaining balance of the liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated the same as

owned assets.

The Group as lessor

()

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees all
the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted
for as operating leases. Rental income from operating leases
is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the

relevant lease.
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(h) Recognition and derecognition of financial

()

instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
statement of financial position when the Group becomes a party

to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets;
or the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained
control on the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised

in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or

|oss.

Investments

Investments are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis where the purchase or sale of an investment is under a
contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within the
timeframe established by the market concerned, and are initially
measured at fair value, plus directly attributable transaction costs
except in the case of financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss.

Investments are classified as either financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss or available-for-sale financial assets.
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0)

Investments (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are either
investments classified as held for trading or designated as
at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition.
These investments are subsequently measured at fair value.
Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of these

investments are recognised in profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial
assets not classified as trade and other receivables, held-
to-maturity investments or financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. Available-for-sale financial assets
are subsequently measured at fair value. Gains or losses
arising from changes in fair value of these investments
are recognised in other comprehensive income, until the
investments are disposed of or there is objective evidence
that the investments are impaired, at which time the
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are recognised in profit or loss.
Interest calculated using the effective interest method is

recognised in profit or loss.

Investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked
to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity

instruments, are measured at cost less impairment losses.
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()

()

Investments (Continued)

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss for equity
investments classified as available-for-sale financial assets
are not subsequently reversed through profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss for debt
instruments classified as available-for-sale financial assets
are subsequently reversed and recognised in profit or
loss if an increase in the fair value of the instruments
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the

recognition of the impairment loss.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market and are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment. An allowance
for impairment of trade and other receivables is established
when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be
able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms
of receivables. The amount of the allowance is the difference
between the receivables’ carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition. The amount of the allowance

is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods and
recognised in profit or loss when an increase in the receivables’
recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the
restriction that the carrying amount of the receivables at the date
the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the amortised

cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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(k) Cash and cash equivalents

)

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change
in value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also

included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument
under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for specific financial

liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

(i)  Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method unless the effect of discounting

would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

(i) Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at

the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

k) RERREEEY

)

RASKRRME ReRRSEHE
MR RFERS  RTRE S
BB EHEARTHAE AN
ENRS LR A ARBERR N
B RBIERA BRI AR
AEERSEE—HHNRTEL
THEATS RIS % B A
ATEEA

THAEERESTAR

cRMeERER TADREBMIL
BRRFNABTREEN B RS E
AATERMEENMERTANTES
TUDER R T ARAERANRIE
BEE (KK EMBERER) R
BREaNEIFAAN -HEERAE
Kt T ARME SR BRI
To

G) H 5 RHAMEN

5 REMENFRFIRE
A EEIE ARELRFRA
BERMEERBHRAE
BRIEMBENTZEBMTRE
A B TR ARSI R -

(i) #m LA

AR EITHERS TR
W B BN BT 15 RIRRUE B BETT K
RAR -



For the year ended 31 March 2014
B 22014F3H31H IFFZ

(m) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of

revenue can be measured reliably.

Revenue from the provision of asset appraisal services and
corporate services and consultancy is recognised when the
services are rendered and the transactions can be measured
reliably, and it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transactions will flow to the Group. Revenue from
progressively billed asset appraisal services is recognised by
reference to the percentage of completion of the transaction.
Revenue from appraisal services which are billed one-off are only
recognised when it is probable that the customers are willing
to settle the billing, which generally coincide with the reports
issue dates. Revenue from the provision of corporate services
and consultancy with specified period is generally recognised on
a straight-line basis over the period of services. Revenue from
success-based corporate services and consultancy is recognised
when the agreed services as set out in the agreements are

rendered.

Revenue from the provision of asset advisory services is recognised
when the revenue can be measured reliably, and it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the transactions will
flow to the Group, i.e. fixed fee revenue is recognised when
the relevant reports incidental to the transactions, such as due
diligence investigation, viability study and evaluation of the target
investment, is issued, and success-based revenue is recognised
when the customers receives or pays the considerations of the

underlying transactions.
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(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Sub-leasing income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the

lease term.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the

effective interest method.

(n) Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

(iir)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services rendered by

employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are

not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all eligible employees.
Contributions to the schemes by the Group and employees
are calculated as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries.
The retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit or loss

represents contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the
dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring

costs and involves the payment of termination benefits.
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(o)

(p)

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain
directors and employees. Equity-settled share-based payments are
measured at the fair value (excluding the effect of non market-
based vesting conditions) of the equity instruments at the date of
grant. The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-
settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of shares
that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non market-

based vesting conditions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing

costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying
a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs
applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the

purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.

(o)

(p)
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(q) Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in previous years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary

difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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(q) Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to

allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover

or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax

assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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(r) Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(A)

(B)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is related

to the Group if that person:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the

Company or of a parent of the Company.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The entity and the Company are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and

fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of

a group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

other entity is an associate of the third entity.
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(r) Related parties (Continued)

(B) (Continued)

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the

Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person

identified in (A).

(vii) A person identified in (A)i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management

personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(s) Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets except
investments and receivables to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of any impairment loss.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of

the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of

the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
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(s)

(t)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset or cash generating unit is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation

decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash generating unit is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation
or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset or cash generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation

increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present

value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.
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(t)

(u)

Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as

contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and are
reflected in the financial statements. Events after the reporting
period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to

the financial statements when material.

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of

estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a

significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities within the next reporting period, are discussed

below.

(a)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual values
and related depreciation charges for the Group’s property,
plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. The Group will revise
the depreciation charge where useful lives are different to those
previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down technically

obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned.
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(b) Allowances for bad and doubtful debts

(9]

The Group makes allowances for bad and doubtful debts based
on assessments of the recoverability of the trade and other
receivables, including the current creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each debtor. Impairments arise where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be collectible. The identification of bad and doubtful debts
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the actual
result is different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying value of the trade and other receivables and
doubtful debt expenses in the year in which such estimate has
been changed. If the financial conditions of the debtors were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make

payments, additional allowances may be required.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes. Significant estimates are
required in determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which

such determination is made.
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The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign REBEEBEDEAXZEBBRERR S
currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group's ¥Ry EE R REE & b &A=
overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of [ELfg - AN E R BB R e EIEIE B HE R
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the SRS AR R DIEHAEE
Group's financial performance. HBRENEETNTZERERK -
(a) Foreign currency risk (a) I B
The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk as part of AEBEEAZE TIINERR  REZ
its business transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in HEDEBR S BERBBEAAR
Renminbi and United States dollars. MR ETTEE
The following tables detail the Group's major exposure at the TR EFE A TR HA R AN &= B LA SN
end of the reporting periods to foreign currency risk arising from B ENERREESBBEELM
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. EZMEZINERR - H2FE
For presentation purposes, the amounts of the exposure are LAZ 3 45 B SR 1 B B fE R ¥ & 498
shown in Hong Kong dollars, translated using the spot rates at the TLHRIE R & FE o

end of the reporting periods.

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
20145 20134
FBT T
Denominated AETEE
in United States dollars
Bank and cash balances IRIT R B 23 11
Trade receivables B S W RIE 16,760 3,094
Prepayments, deposits and TERTFRIE - H @ R H b FE W IA
other receivables 2,329 2,329
19,112 5,434
Denominated in Renminbi DAR¥SE
Trade receivables B S W RIE 75,493 48,492
Prepayments, deposits and TERTFRIE - i@ R H b FE W IR
other receivables 260 -
Accruals and other payables EETTEE RE M ENRIE (774) (774)

74,979 47,718
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(a) ShEEEEE ()

TRERBRAE Mt RRE B
FAE AEBRREPRAZEKX
[\ 1) BEE 0 7% % H B AR A = Ep - B
RN B B g N A B B

(a) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the
Group's profit for the year that would have arisen if foreign
exchange rates to which the Group has significant exposure at

the end of the reporting periods had changed at those dates,

(b)

assuming all other risk variables remained constant. o
2014 2013

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
in foreign (decrease) in foreign (decrease)
exchange in profit exchange in profit
rates for the year rates for the year
HK$'000 HK$'000

20145 20134

ExtEH FERA B F 2% A
(F#)  #®m/ CEd) (F&R)  #m/ Crd)
FHET FHT
United States dollars E 175 1% 45
(175) (1%) (45)
Renminbi AR 2,114 3% 1,313
(2,114) (3%) (1,313)

Price risk

The Group's financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
is measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.

Therefore, the Group is exposed to equity security price risk.

At 31 March 2013, if the business value per share of the
investments increase/decrease by 10%, profit after tax for the
year would have been approximately HK$261,000 higher/lower,

arising as a result of the fair value gain/loss of the investments.

(b) EEER

rEBZBEARBEFABRENE
RMEEDREZBRSHRNAAE
EFFE - Bt NEEmEHRAES
ERER -

M201343A318 ' MiEE ZEFR
EEBEENR10%  HRIE
BERnBEYS BREEZFE
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(9]

(d)

Credit risk

The carrying amount of the pledged bank deposit, bank and
cash balances, trade and other receivables, available-for-sale
financial asset, financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
and amount due from a related party included in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents the Group’s maximum

exposure to credit risk in relation to the Group's financial assets.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that services are
provided to customers with an appropriate credit history. Amount

due from a related party are closely monitored by the directors.

The credit risk on pledged bank deposit and bank and cash
balances is limited because the counterparties are banks with high

credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group has certain concentration of credit risk, as the Group's
three largest debtors accounted for 43% (2013: 62%) of trade
receivables as at 31 March 2014.

Liquidity risk
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient

reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and

longer term.

(o)

(d)
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(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) REBESEMR (#)
The maturity analysis of the Group's financial liabilities is as AEESHBENIIEBE AT
follows:
On demand
or less than Between Between Over
1year 1and2years 2and5 years 5 years
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RERS
kP 1225 2E55F BB5F
FHET FET FAET FHET
At 31 March 2014 7201453AH31H
Trade payables H 5 e RIE 4,820 - - -
Accruals and other FEETIE B R H b BT
payables FRIE 2,370 - - -
Obligations under MEMEEEME
finance leases 172 - - -
At 31 March 2013 M2013F3A31H
Trade payables E SN RIE 5,082 = = =
Accruals and other FEETIE B K& H A FE T
payables FRIE 2,397 = = =
Obligations under BEMERME
finance leases 172 172 - -
Amount due to a director [ ¥ = 7118 375 = = =
(e) Interest rate risk (e) FIZEE K
The Group's exposure to interest rate risk arises from its bank AEBARZERITF KEERNFIR

Bl - XSEREIHFIL & F
SRR B TR T o

deposits. These deposits bear interest at variable rates varied with

the then prevailing market condition.
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(e) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(f)

As at 31 March 2014, it is estimated that a general increase/
(decrease) of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would have increased/(decreased) the

Group's profit for the year as follow:

(e) F=RmEp (&)

R20145F38318 ' fEFTE H & &
W TENBERT  HetFlREeg
# CRF)100EE R - AEFERF

EmA g, ORd)mT:

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
20145 20134
F#&xT FHT

Increase/(decrease) in interest rates R EF (TH)
100 basis points 1001 & 2 45 199
(100) basis points (100) {EE2h (45) (199)

Categories of the Group’s financial

(f) AEEN2014F38318H

instruments at 31 March 2014 SR T AEER
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
20145 20134
FERT FHIT
Financial assets: cTREE:
Available-for-sale financial asset AHEESREE 2,241 2,241
Financial asset at fair value through RAREBEEFABENEREE
profit or loss
Held for trading BHER S - 206
Loans and receivables (including ERREWHIE (RERE R
cash and cash equivalents): fﬁﬁ#f‘i%) :
Trade receivables % 5 R IE 112,920 79,159
Deposits and other receivables & & EH M FEUGRIE 32,035 5,456
Amount due from a related party JiE W e 38 75 R IR 4,080 1,370
Pledged bank deposit BEEHIEITER 1,022 1,014
Bank and cash balances 17 RIR S R 4,024 19,458
156,322 108,904
Financial liabilities: cHAE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: REHEK AN SREE:
Trade payables Z 5 FEf 518 4,820 5,082
Accruals and other payables EETIE B R E b EN B 2,370 2,397
Amount due to a director EEH—%§$7A i - 375
7,190 7,854
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(g) Fair values

(9) 2REME

Except as disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements, the
carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and financial
liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of financial

position approximate their respective fair values.

The following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair

value hierarchy which has three levels:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the Group can access at the measurement

date.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or

indirectly.

Level 3: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at
31 March 2013:

BREAFS SRR M 19FTIR BB SN - 475
MHRARARRAEE B EE
REBAEMNREEREEZENR
REEEE -

ATHRBEDABEFEAEARA
BEER EESKR=FEH:

F1E : AEBAR 8 A5
FEZESS EHERTSRE (RE
AE) -

F2E EERXEENEEXARGEA
BERBAER MIEFIEMEEDN

HE-

FIE-BERBBENTAERGA
LS

A2013F3H31E AR EE
ERNEE -

Fair value measurement using: Total
RATEBAENDABE: S
Description iz Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
E1E E2[E E3[E 20134
FHET FHET FHET FHET
Financial asset BRAREEFABEN
at fair value through CREE
profit or loss
Derivatives PTETHE - - 206 206
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(g) Fair values (Continued)

Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value

based on level 3:

(9) 2AREHEH)

BREFIERAABENE
MEEHK:

Financial asset at fair value

Description what through profit or loss
BRAREEFA
BRNEmMEE
Derivatives
fTETR
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
20145 20134
FET FHT
At beginning of year REFEH) 206 1,469
Total gains or losses recognised T8 55 HE TR Y &2 S AR FE ()
in profit or loss (#) 206 (1,263)
At end of year RER - 206
#) Include gains or losses for assets ~ (#) BIEREHROFTEERE
held at end of reporting period - (1,263)

The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss including those

for assets held at end of reporting period are presented in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income.

RESERNEBLESFILER
RERRK IR EENEE - TI04R
EREEIEMEEAKREREZS -

2014 2013

HK$°000 HK$'000

20145 20134

FET FHET

Asset appraisal services income B E AT h AR YA 43,092 38,629
Asset advisory services income B EBEMREBRA 1,004 25,147
Corporate services and consultancy income {2 iR# K& s Ug A 44,775 32,455

88,871 96,231
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2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
201445 20134
FBT FHT
Bank interest income HRITH B WA 11 124
Reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses & %5 5 X i 35 2,347 953
Sub-leasing income oA A 1,791 1,470
4,149 2,547
The Group has two reportable segments as follows: REEMERE BT
Asset advisory services and - Provision of asset appraisal and asset advisory services, including real estate and
asset appraisal fixed asset appraisal, mineral property appraisal, business and intangible asset
valuation, financial instrument and derivative valuation and advisory related to
various types of assets in particular property in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC")
BEBMB RS R EENG - RHEENGEREEBRBRYE SIEFHERKEFE B EN S BEN M X5
MEVEERE eRIARTETAGMERARSEEE (LHEERPEA
RAME ([HE])OWE) 7R
Corporate services and - Provision of company secretarial services, human resource management and other
consultancy administrative services, accounting and tax services, corporate communication

and marketing services, corporate governance, internal control, enterprise risk
management services and management consultancy services

DERSE KA - REARWERSE ANEREEREMITBRY S5t RATRE X8
AR TISHEERS CXER AREE CERREIRRE R EIREEARE

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units that offer REBMRED LB AFRE M EFEER 12
different products and services. They are managed separately because AR Em RS 50 BBELER R
. . . X . . B A7 3 =B 35 AN 5] B 4 41T 2B s RG T 12
each business requires different technical requirements and marketing FRERL® 2 TR IR KR M 5HE
[ o

strategies.



For the year ended 31 March 2014
B 22014F3H31H IFFZ

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same £ > B0 Y & FT ISR B B 7S R R M R E3F
as those described in note 3 to the financial statements. Segment MEMR P E BN EETIBRER

profits or losses do not include corporate income and expenses, loss WE - ZARBEFABENEREE

on financial asset at fair value through profit or loss, share of results
of associates and a joint venture, loss on deemed disposal of partial
interests in an associate and finance costs. Segment assets do not
include corporate assets, investments in associates and a joint venture,
available-for-sale financial asset, financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss, pledged bank deposit and amount due from a related
party. Segment liabilities do not include corporate liabilities, obligations
under finance lease and amount due to a director. Segment non-
current assets do not include corporate property, plant and equipment,
investments in associates and a joint venture and available-for-sale

financial asset.

The Group accounts for intersegment revenue and transfers as if the

revenue or transfers were to third parties, i.e. at current market prices.

B DIEBERRR—HaERARINE
BRRLE—HBERRFOERZE
BEVBERR -DHEEFBREARE
E RBEARE-—REERRNERE
AHEESREE RO BEFAER
WEREE CEMRTERREWRREE
AR NHEBETEEAREE BE
HEAEREN —BEEHIH - D EIER
HEETBRARYE BEERE R
B AR R A E QR EIRE AR AT #
HESREE-

AEBRE R EIES BEWKE REZEA
B BN = Wan sk

(a) FEAME 7 BB HEE
EERBENES:

Asset advisory
services and  Corporate services

(a) Information about reportable segment profit
or loss, assets and liabilities:

asset appraisal and consultancy Total
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
B ERE R R CEBBER
BETME &l st
TR FEx FERx
Year ended 31 March 2014  EZ201453A31HLEE
Revenue from external REINRE P K
customers 44,096 44,775 88,871
Intersegment revenue o B e 1,237 9,756 10,993
Segment profit 5 B Al 24,389 24,519 48,908
Interest revenue Bz 4 - 4
Depreciation e 157 279 436
Staff costs E IR 12,085 10,777 22,862
Income tax (credit)/expense 58 (%), FX (4,941) 767 (4,174)
Additions to segment REDHERBDEE
non-current assets 90 208 298
As at 31 March 2014 ®2014%3831H
Segment assets DHEE 52,092 65,736 117,828
Segment liabilities HEBEE 7,650 2,721 10,371
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(a) Information about reportable segment profit
or loss, assets and liabilities: (Continued)

(a) BEREHRE DB ERREE -
EEREBEBENER: (&)

Asset advisory

services and Corporate services

asset appraisal and consultancy Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEBRRRE R DERB K
BETE i @&t
FHL T FHET
Year ended 31 March 2013 B E2013F3A31H LFE
Revenue from external REINRE S Wz
customers 63,776 32,455 96,231
Intersegment revenue 7 Eh s 2,492 8,652 11,144
Segment profit 7 & Al 29,351 18,163 47,514
Interest revenue B Mz 2 = 2
Depreciation e 235 224 459
Staff costs BIRA 14,008 7,963 21,971
Income tax expense FEBRx 1,804 2,050 3,854
Additions to segment REDBERDEE
non-current assets 92 190 282
As at 31 March 2013 #2013F3A318
Segment assets DHEE 51,722 36,264 87,986
Segment liabilities HEEE 12,650 3,149 15,799
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(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment

(b) &7 AU - 8RN

revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities: B EEREENYE:
2014 2013
HK$000 HK$'000
20145 20135
FET FHET
Revenue (V&
Total revenue of reportable segments & 7 2 Uz 48 28 99,864 107,375
Elimination of intersegment revenue 75 B [ W 2 3 8 (10,993) (11,144)
Consolidated revenue ra s 88,871 96,231
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
20145 20134
FTHET FAET
Profit or loss A &R
Total profit of reportable segments s o B F B EE 48,908 47,514
Elimination of intersegment profits 7 B [ i ) 8 (10,993) (11,144)
Unallocated amounts ROBEEFE
Share of results of associates and DIEBE R B R
a joint venture —HEERAEE (1,541) (239)
Gain on disposal of an associate o — S A RIM 2,460 -
Impairment of an investment HN—HEEE R R 2 RERE
in an associate (184) =
Loss on financial asset at RAREBEGAEGRN
fair value through profit or loss TREEEE (206) (1,263)
Finance costs B TS BCAR (20) (15)
Corporate expenses NG 3 (7,142) (7,924)
Consolidated profit for the year FEERE &= 31,282 26,929
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(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment

(b) &7 ABUER BRI

revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities: B EEREENYE:
(Continued) (&)
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
20145 20134
FExT FET
Segment assets DEEE
Total assets of reportable segments mMEDHEELE 117,828 87,986
Unallocated amounts: KRB & FH
Corporate assets NAEBE 33,830 20,551
Available-for-sale financial asset A ESmEE 2,241 2,241
Investments in associates and NN
a joint venture —HEERAINEE - 23,588
Deposit paid for acquisition of FULEE — R N &)
an associate Pt R & 325 -
Financial asset at fair value BAg BB ABEN
through profit or loss CREE - 206
Pledged bank deposit BB IRITER 1,022 1,014
Amount due from a related party JiE Wi e 38 75 FR IR 4,080 1,370
Consolidated total assets HEEEMAE 159,326 136,956
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
2014F 20134
FET FHET
Segment liabilities DEEE
Total liabilities of reportable segments ~ fR& D 2 B E4A%E 10,371 15,799
Unallocated amounts: RO TR
Corporate liabilities NEBE 890 1,775
Obligations under finance leases MEMEST 167 329
Amount due to a director e —BREERIE - 375

Consolidated total liabilities

RAEREAE

11,428

18,278




For the year ended 31 March 2014
B 220149F3 31 H1F FE

(b) &7 AU - 8RN

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment

revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities: B EEREENYE:
(Continued) (&)
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
20144 20134
FExT FHT
Interest revenue F S W 22
Total interest revenue of WwMEDEHF BB
reportable segment 4 2
Unallocated amounts AN ek}
Corporate interest revenue A EF) B E 7 122
Consolidated interest revenue AR B 11 124
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
20144 20134
FET FHET
Depreciation e
Total depreciation of WEDEITERRE
reportable segments 436 459
Unallocated amounts RO eEE
Depreciation of corporate assets NEIBENE 183 182
Consolidated depreciation rETTE 619 641
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
20144 20134
FERT FHIT
Staff costs B I
Total staff costs of WEDEE TRKAEEE
reportable segments 22,862 21,971
Unallocated amounts RO BC & H
Corporate staff costs AR B TR 11,502 11,761
Consolidated staff costs RE B IR 34,364 33,732
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(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment (b) BMEDEBU R  BEFIHE
revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities: B EEREENYE:
(Continued) (&)

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
201445 20134
FHT THT
Additions to non-current assets REFRRBEE

Total additions to non-current assets of ¥R& D EORE IEAR BN E EHEE

reportable segments 298 282
Unallocated amounts RO B2 H
Acquisition of an associate Wb — Fl e i A &) - 281
Acquisition of available-for-sale WA EemERE
financial asset - 2,241
Deposit paid for acquisition of FULEE — R N &)
an associate Pt R & 325 -
Consolidated additions to FANBERBEE
non-current assets 623 2,804
(c) Geographical information: (c) HHEER:
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
20145 20134
FTHET FHET
Revenue Wz
Hong Kong 0 32,164 34,724
The PRC (excluding Hong Kong) FE(TEERE) 43,473 56,926
Others Hith 13,234 4,581

Consolidated total AR 88,871 96,231
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(c) Geographical information: (Continued) (c) HHEER: (&)
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
20145 20134
FTHET FHT
Non-current assets RBEE
Hong Kong B 1,148 24,999
The PRC (excluding Hong Kong) FE(TRERE) 2,307 2,280
Others EAh 479 239
Consolidated total LRE 1A EE 3,934 27,518
In presenting the geographical information, revenue is based on 1E 2 513 [% B RL - Woas AR P P
the locations of the customers. B R EAE
(d) Revenue from major customers: d) REXEEZFHWE:
An analysis of revenue from major customers which account for HAEBKZFI0%I A EHEER
over 10 percent or more of the Group's revenue is as follows: FREDTAT :
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
20144 20134
FET FHT
Asset advisory services and EEBEREREEFML
asset appraisal
Customer A ZEPA N/ATE 16,195
Corporate services and consultancy 1 ¥ R & 53
Customer B ZFB N/ATE 16,632
Customer C BFC 10,080 N/ATT i F
Customer D =FD 9,725 N/AT 3 A

Customer E ZPFE 8,820 N/AT 38 FH
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9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BB AA
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
201445 20134
FET FHT
Interest on bank overdrafts RITHEZHFE 10 =
Finance lease charges BmEREL 10 15
20 15
The finance costs are for borrowings wholly repayable within five years. MK AN AERAFANEHEENEE -
10. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE 10. RS % (%) BxX
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
20144 20134
FExT FHTT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BNEAR I8 — F B RIS T
Provision for the year FERE 2,102 3,649
(Over)/under-provision in prior years BEFE (BREBE) TREE (6,276) 205
(4,174) 3,854
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5% (2013: ANEBRBEEE2014F38318 ILFE
16.5%) based on the estimated assessable profit for the year ended 31 B fh 5 FE R B s F 0 $216.5% (20134
March 2014. 16.5% ) B9 7t R EHHe & B MIS B4 o
Tax charges on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the H b 3h 77 & FR T i M BV B IE 2 HH D AR &
rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates, EREMERRE RN E  RIEE MR
based on existing legislation, interpretation and practices in respect E - REREAFE -
thereof.
97 BEHERKERAR

2014 £
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10. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 10. Fife % (&) X (&
The reconciliation between the income tax (credit)/expense and the FT{S Rt (K Ge) /5 2 B2 B i AT 1) 3 LA
product of profit before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate BEBENEHPENERNEERNOT
is as follows:
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
20145 20134
FExT FHT
Profit before tax B 56 i s 27,108 30,783
Hong Kong Profits Tax rate BEMEHB xR 16.5% 16.5%
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate BREANSH R EGTEMNTIE 4,473 5,079
Tax effect of income that is not taxable BARMM AR 2 (6,150) (2,547)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible A F1F f X MO R 75 2 2 1,014 348
Tax effect of temporary differences TERERHEZENT BT E
not recognised 416 33
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised 52 7 &) F i 18 518 1O B 7% =7 22 2,592 861
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses AR ARERTIEB BN E
not previously recognised - -
Under-provision in current year RER 2T REE (78) (48)
(Over)/under-provision in prior years BAFE (BERE) TEEE (6,276) 205
Tax effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries  Fff & 2 7% R A [R] O B 75 57 22 (165) (77)
Income tax (credit)/expense Fie®i (%) X (4,174) 3,854
GreaterChina Professional Services Limited 08

Annual Report 2014
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The Group's profit for the year is stated after charging/(crediting) the REBFERFENR (GTA)VUTE
following: HEHSIAT
2014 2013
HK$000 HK$'000
20144 20134
FExT FHET
Auditor’s remuneration % SR B 450 580
Bad debts written off AR EH 31 =
Allowance for trade receivables (note 20) 2 5 WA R S (Ffsr20) 5,072 851
Reversal of allowance for B S RBGRIER R B (HiFF20)
trade receivables (note 20) (210) (149)
Allowance for amount due from FE U — & & R R FRIA R
a joint venture - 1,099
Depreciation e 619 641
Directors’ emoluments (note 12(a)) EEHH (EE126)) 3,954 4,361
Exchange loss, net PE 5 &8558 3 142
Fair value loss on financial asset RARBETAEENEREED
at fair value through profit or loss AR BEEE 206 1,263
Loss on disposals of property, HEWE - BB KR EEE
plant and equipment - 162
Gain on disposal of an associate ek NI &y (2,460) -
Impairment of an investment in an associate A — & QR Z I ERE 184 =
Operating lease charges CERESH
Land and buildings T RAEF 6,953 5,630
Photocopier machines ENH 82 53
7,035 5,683
Staff costs including directors’ emoluments 8 T (B IEZ= EHH)
Salaries, bonus and allowances B RER 33,563 32,614
Share-based payments LARR 1 7% B0 8 15 5% 85 373
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RNE R B 716 745

34,364 33,732
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(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) ESHM
The emoluments of each of the Company’s directors were as ARRSESHMAT
follows:
Salaries,  Retirement
allowances benefit Share-
and benefits scheme based Discretionary
Name of director Fees inkind contributions  payments bonus Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e 2H RIRER Ukt A
Exps e REWHZE STEIfS  ERNAR BEwA HY
THL THL THT THBT THBT THBT
Year ended HZ201453R31H

31 March 2014 LEE
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong ERSEAE - 3,496 15 - - 3,511
Independent BUFHTEE

non-executive directors
Mr. Au-Yang Cheong BHRELE

Yan, Peter 180 - - - - 180
Mr. Wan Kam To (resigned ~ F 3858 04 (120134

on 1 December 2013) A18EE) % - - - - %
Mr. Wu Chi Keung ik bt 150 - - - - 150
Ms. Ng See Wai, Rowena R BEX L (R20145

(appointed on 2A17B %)

17 February 2014) 17 - - - - 17
Total @5t 443 3,496 15 - - 3,954
Year ended HZ2013%3A31H

31 March 2013 LEE
Executive directors HITEF
Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong EBtAE = 2,995 15 = = 3,010
Mr. Leung Siu Hong PREEE (R2012F

(retired on 8A3EER)

3 August 2012) - 853 3 - - 856
Indlependent BUHHTEE

non-executive dlirectors
Mr. Au-Yang Cheong BERBEE

Yan, Peter 180 - - 7 - 187
Mr. Wan Kam To FRBLE 144 - - 7 - 151
Mr. Wu Chi Keung ik bt 150 - - 7 = 157
Total st 474 3,848 18 21 - 4,361

B EX P EEE SN AFE I B
B E FHE R B E E A #5 B
B2 Bk

Save as disclosed above, there was no arrangement under which
a director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the

year.
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(b) Five highest paid individuals’ emoluments (b) T BAEEFH AL N
The five highest paid individuals in the Group included 1 director HE2014F3A31BLEE A&
(2013: 1 director) for the year ended 31 March 2014. Details MAEmeRTATEREIRES
of those emoluments have been disclosed above. Details of the (2013F - 1BER) - BERTMFIE
emoluments of the remaining highest paid individuals for the year REXHEBR - RAFE BT &x=5
are set out below: ATHFH BRI T
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
20145 20134
FERT FHIT
Salaries and allowances Fre RoERL 8,255 5,043
Discretionary bonus BB EAL - =
Share-based payments LARR 19 A BB 89 - 5k - 119
Retirement benefit scheme RIRAEFIET B R
contributions 60 58
8,315 5,220
The emoluments fell within the following bands: &8 70 TS 21 46 [ ) i A
Number of individuals
AE
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
20144 20134
FET FET
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 75 21,500,000/ 7T 2 B
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017% 7T £2,000,000/%8 7T 1 1
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7t £4,500,000/% 7T 1 —
(c) No remunerations were paid by the Group to any of the directors () RAFE NREBYEREFESS
or the highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon T ATZAEB - AERBEEN
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office during the BE ok N B AN R B 1 A SR D o BE L A

i3

A

o

year.
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The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The Group's
contributions to the MPF Scheme are calculated at 5% of the salaries
and wages subject to a monthly maximum amount of contribution
of HK$1,250 per employee and vest fully with employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Eligible employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC are
members of a central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and wages to the central
pension scheme to fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement benefits obligations
of all existing and future retired employees of these subsidiaries. The
only obligation of these subsidiaries with respect to the central pension

scheme is to meet the required contributions under the scheme.

No dividend has been declared by the Company for the year ended 31
March 2014. On 28 June 2013, the directors proposed a final dividend
of HKO.5 cent per ordinary share totalling HK$2,500,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2013. The dividend was paid on 21 August 2013.

AEERBESRGEABSHEIGO A
HeB A8 RaSRERVARHIEAES
srEl([aEestall) AEEERES
HeRIE%MAEE T EEL MK
HERAERERATEREE,2508 T

R A5 S R EVEH BRI - 153 5
BEE -

AEERTPEXIOMELRSERES
ASHLTT TR I 0 R SRR IR & GBI
B -ZEMBRARAREREAHFERT
EETAD AP RRARSEEME L #

K PAS A A B AR RAR A © b 77 T R A 7
AEEZEMBEARIMARE RBRENK
BENRARENET ZSWBARRSD
REAREF BN —RESREZEIE
PR K

HZE2014F3A31 A ILFE - AR T &
TR B - R2013F6 A28H  EE &=
IKEBZE2013F3A318 L FEA R
BERE AR5 - & 2,500,000/
T o B B R2013F8A21 A S fif»



For the year ended 31 March 2014
i 22014F3431H IFFZ

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to owners
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2014 is based on the
consolidated profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately HK$31,282,000 (2013: HK$26,929,000) and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 500,898,137 (2013:
500,037,589) in issue during the year, and is calculated as follows:

BREXER

BE2014F3A31 B ILFENARFESR
ABEEGRERBRNTDBREBEFAHAL
AIYER AJE(G4R & M 4931,282,00078 7T
(20134F : 26,929,000/ 7T ) M F RE 7T
L 38 % 0 7 £9 88500,898,137/% (2013
£ 500,037,589 ) 5t & At ENT ¢

2014 2013
20145 20134
Issued ordinary shares at beginning of year RENHE BT EBR 500,040,000 500,000,000
Effect of exercise of share options ITIFEBRENTE 858,137 37,589
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 7% 7R /9 % 38 % hn i F 19 2
at end of year 500,898,137 500,037,589
Diluted earnings per share BREEEF

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the calculation of diluted earnings
per share attributable to owners of the Company is based on the profit
for the year attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$31,282,000 and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 502,754,742, being the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 500,898,137 in issue during the year used in the basic
earnings per share calculation plus the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 1,856,605 assumed to have been issued at no
consideration on the deemed exercise of the share options outstanding

during the reporting period.

The Company did not have any dilutive potential ordinary share for the

year ended 31 March 2013.

BZE2014F3A31BILFE - ARRHEE
AFEAE GRS BRI TR B F N AR A
B AEEHEF 431,282,000/ 70 & & @A
DN F 5 8 A502,754,7420% (B B R &
HERERBF 2 FREETL B NE
15 £7500,898, 137X MR AETTE R 3R 45
HA AT EEREMRRUASREAHME
T2 LB NIET I 8R1,856,6050% ) 5

s
= o
>t

KARIAEZE2013F3A31H IEFE R
EARBESEELR
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For the year ended 31 March 2014

B FE2014F3 31 HIFF/F

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. 5% -BMERRKRE

Group
REE
Leasehold Furniture and Office Motor
improvements equipment equipment vehicle Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HENEEE BRRRE BOERME RE @it
FHT FET FHT FHT FHT
Cost A
At 1 April 2012 R2012F4 7818 1,215 409 2,076 647 4,347
Additions NE 83 93 106 - 282
Disposals HE (203) = = = (203)
At 31 March 2013 and R2013F3A318 &

1 April 2013 2013%4A1R 1,095 502 2,182 647 4,426
Additions NE = 203 95 - 298
At 31 March 2014 R2014F3A31H 1,095 705 2,277 647 4724
Accumulated depreciation R E
At 1 April 2012 R2012%4 7818 526 255 1,262 94 2,137
Charge for the year FEME 156 47 276 162 641
Disposals k= @) = = = @)
At 31 March 2013 and M2013F3A318 &

1 April 2013 2013%4A1A 641 302 1,538 256 2,737
Charge for the year FEME 139 84 234 162 619
At 31 March 2014 M2014%3A31H 780 386 1,772 418 3,356
Carrying amount REE
At 31 March 2014 R2014%3A31H 315 319 505 229 1,368
At 31 March 2013 M2013F3A31H 454 200 644 391 1,689

At 31 March 2014 the carrying amount of motor vehicle held by the

Group under finance leases amounted to approximately HK$229,000

(2013: HK$391,000).
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Bl 2201493531 HIFFE

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. R B A TR E

Company
EYNE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
20145 20134
THERT FET

FELETRE A - =

Unlisted investments, at cost

FEY,FERTT A R E R EEAR - 25
Ko S 8] FE 5& R A o

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and

have no fixed terms of repayment.

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 March 2014 are as follows: R2014FE3A31BMBRARFEBIT :

Percentage of
Place/date of ownership interest/
incorporation/ Issued and voting power/
Name of subsidiary establishment paid up capital profit sharing Principal activities
gMAL/ EiREEER/
WEAR AR Ryt %,/ BH BRIRBRER 2R/ AEENEA L TEEE
2014 2013
20146 20136
Directly held:
EEEA:
New Valiant Limited B.VIL Us$4 100% 100%  Investment holding
28 July 2010
RERTES 4ET REER
2010574288
Fidelia Investments Limited B.VI. Us$4 100% 100%  Investment holding
12 November 2010
ERENHS 4% RERR
2010117128
Indirectly held:
BEEE:
Greater China Appraisal Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$ 1,600,000 100% 100%  Provision of asset appraisal
20 August 1997 services
EENEBRRAA 57 1,600,000/ 70 REEET RS
199748 A20H
Greater China Consultants Limited ~ B.V. US$1 100% 100%  Provision of corporate
(formerly known as Best Aim 2 February 2010 consultancy services
Consultant Ltd.)
ey (B RECEHARE
2010%2A28
Asset-Plus Global Limited B.VIL Us$2 100% 100%  Provision of asset advisory
23 July 1997 services and corporate
consultancy services
ERENES Ve REEERRERER
1997674238 DERHAARS
Greater China Corporate Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Provision of corporate services
Consultancy & Services Limited 15 November 2004 and consultancy
EECERBERLA ) 28 RECERBLAR
200411158
105 BEEEXRBEERD A
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
Bl F2014F3H31H 1L FE

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

17. A B AR MR E (&)

Percentage of
Place/date of ownership interest/
incorporation/ Issued and voting power/
Name of subsidiary establishment paid up capital profit sharing Principal activities
SR,/ EERERESR
WEARER Ry, BH BRIRBREX REE/HMERRES TEEH
2014 2013
20146 20136
GCA Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$ 1,600,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
20 August 2004
EEEE (BR)BRARF B 1,600,000/ 7T REBR
200487208
Linkson Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Sub-leasing of office
3 December 1999
ERREFRAR BE 2B PRIk NS
1999412 A3R
Hanhua Zhenli Zi Ben Zi Xun The PRC Registered capital of 100% 100%  Provision of consultancy
(Beijing) Co., Ltd. (note (a)) 23 February 2010 HK$2,000,000 services
EETVEAER HE A &R REtEARS
A (LR)BRAA 201062A23R 2,000,000/ 7
(Fit3kG))
Creative Market Holdings Limited ~ B.V.. Us$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
22 July 2011
ERELHE 1%L REZR
2011574228
Greater China Asset Services Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Provision of asset appraisal
BEEERKEB AR 26 October 2011 services, corporate
consultancy services and
property agency services
Bk 18T REEENERE
20114104268 EXRAEARSE R
MERERY
GC Investments (MENA) Limited ~ Dubai US$50,000 100% - Provision of asset advisory
25 April 2013 services and corporate
consultancy services
HE 50,0003 T REBEBRRBER
2013F4A258 DEHARS
Notes: Bt &t

(@  English names for identification purpose.

The above list contains the particulars of subsidiaries which principally

affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014

HE2014F3H31H 1F F/F
18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND A JOINT 18. R E QR —BEE AT
VENTURE WiRE
Group
AEE
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
20144 20134
FET FHT
Investments in associates: REEE QN RIRIRE
Unlisted investments EEMIRE
Share of net assets DREEFE 184 4,449
Goodwill EES - 19,139
184 23,588
Impairment losses VEREY SEi=| (184) =
- 23,588
Investment in a joint venture: R—Ra &R RHIRE
Unlisted investment ELEMRE
Share of net assets DREEFE - =
- 23,588

Details of the Group's associates at 31 March 2014 are as follows:

M2014453 A31 B 2N & B 19 B
UNNE

Percentage of

B AT

Place of ownership interest/
incorporation/ Issued and voting power/
Name registration paid up capital profit sharing Principal activities
EihEERER
AL REE/
% BRE BRTREZER AEEFE A TEEH
2014 2013
20145 20134
TodayIR Holdings Limited B.VI. US$1,569 - 19.12%*  Investment holding
EEBELHE 1,569% 7T REER
IREEFHEERM PRC Registered capital of 50%  50% Inactive
BHRAR* US$60,000
M # & 7860,000% 7T RS
Greater China London Limited  United Kingdom GBP112,500 20% 20%  Inactive
R 112,500 % R3S

* The business licence has been suspended since 18 July 2008.

i The Group holds warrant which entitles the Group to subscribe 150
new ordinary shares in the associate. After the exercise of the warrant,
the Group would share 26.18% ownership interest in the associate.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
B 22014F3H31H IFFZ

TRINFAEESZ KBS RRNER < It

The following table shows information of an associate that is material

to the Group. The associate is accounted for in the consolidated

financial statements using the equity method. The summarised financial

information presented is based on the HKFRS financial statements of

the associate.

FHERRRERENGS

MBHRERZ

H-MBERNBEREBEAFRREE
MRS ENREOM T RK R

Name £ TodayIR Holdings Limited
2014 2013
2014 20134
Principal place of business/ country of incorporation FTELEB AMAZER Hong Kong/
B.V.I.
BB EBRELEE
Principal activities FEEK Provision of investor relation services
REREERRRE
% of ownership interests/voting rights held by the Group A% EFBHEAEZR K AEE D - 19.12%/19.12%
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
At 31 March: MA3H318:
Non-current assets EREEE N/ATE A 7,928
Current assets MEEE N/ATE A 20,276
Non-current liabilities EREEE N/ATREA (5,098)
Current liabilities mENEE N/ATEA (1,082)
Net assets FEE N/ATE A 22,024
Group's share of net assets NEEEEEE N/ATE A 4,211
Goodwill EES N/AT & A 19,139
Carrying amount of interests Em A EREE N/ATEA 23,350
Year ended 31 March: HEIAMALEE:
Revenue WA 32,883 37,242
Loss from continuing operations REFELEEBER (7.318) (1,107)
Profit after tax from discontinued operations % (3 4% || 4% & 2 75 /4 18 528 F - =
Other comprehensive income Hth 2 E Wz - -
Total comprehensive income 2B % (7,318) (1,107)
Dividends received from an associate [RE NG il $5) - 153
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND A JOINT

18. ABEARAR—HAEEAT

VENTURE (CONTINUED) WIRE (&)
The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group's share of the TRINTAE B B FTE B BT E R
amounts of all individually immaterial associates that are accounted for AR ENEE R RIR SR
using the equity method.
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
20144 20134
FET FAT
At 31 March: MA3H31R8:
Carrying amounts of interests Tz K BRE (B - 238
Year ended 31 March: BZE3A3MALEE:
Loss from continuing operations REFELEEBER (396) (134)
Loss after tax from discontinued operations REKR I E B BERE - -
Other comprehensive income H b 2 mE e 122 (72)
Total comprehensive income 2wl (274) (206)
109 BEHERKERAR
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND A JOINT

VENTURE (CONTINUED)

Details of the Group's joint venture at 31 March 2014 are as follows:

18.

REEATAR—MEEAT
HRE ()

MR2014F3A31H AEEAZE AR
ICEUNNE

Zl
F
3—'}‘-&

Percentage of

Place of ownership interest/
incorporation/ Issued and voting power/
Name registration paid up capital profit sharing Principal activities
BEERER RER/
=% LM AL R i B BROTRBERE AERFEIL TEEW
2014 2013
20145 20135
Asia Pacific International Hong Kong HK$2 - 50% Investment holding
Professional Managers
Management Centre Limited
TEABRRBELEA BB 28T REER
ERHLARAT
Asia Pacific International B.V.I. Us$2 50% - Investment holding
Professional Managers
Holdings Limited
DABBBEREA RERUAS 2ET e gyl
EREMAE
GreaterChina Professional Services Limited 110
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
i 22014F3431H IFFZ

The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group’s share of the
amount of all individually immaterial joint venture that is accounted for

using the equity method.

TRIVRAE B A PTA (BB N EARIRE
BERFIMBETHE-

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
20145 20134
FET FAT
At 31 March: MA3H31R8 :
Carrying amounts of interests M EBREE - -
Year ended 31 March: BZE3AMALEE:
Loss from continuing operations REFELEEBER (2,890) (2,198)
Loss after tax from discontinued operations RERIFELEERTIZER - -
Other comprehensive income H b 2 e (33) 16
Total comprehensive income B2 E (2,923) (2,182)

The Group has not recognised loss for the year amounting to
approximately HK$1,445,000 (2013: HK$1,099,000) for the joint
venture. The accumulated losses not recognised were approximately

HK$2,544,000 (2013: HK$1,099,000).

As at 31 March 2014, the bank and cash balances of the Group’ joint
venture in the PRC denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$191,000 (2013: HK$145,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign

Exchange Regulations.

AEEHAREE AT EREEETES
8 #91,445,0007% 7T (20134F : 1,099,000
BIT) o RHER RETE B X 52,544,000/
7L (20134 : 1,099,000/ 1) °

M2014563A318 AEBRFBRZEE
AERARBHERRITRB S EROA
191,000/ 7T (20134F : 145,000%7T) ° A
FRME A R INEE 78 8 57 B SN B 1601
ARGERE  EERNESERE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2014

HZE2014F3H31HIFF/ZF

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET 19. At ESHEE
Group
KEE

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

201445 20134

F T FHT

Unlisted equity securities, at cost FEEMZRAES R 2,241 2,241

20.

GreaterChina Professional Services Limited

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group, through a wholly
owned subsidiary, entered into a series of contractual arrangements to
purchase 30% equity interests in a private entity incorporated in the
PRC, an appraisal company which provides appraisal services in the
PRC, at a total consideration of RMB1,800,000. The acquisition was
completed in January 2013. Because the Group has no voting right on
the governing bodies of this entity, the Group is not able to exercise
significant influence over the financial and operating policy decisions of

this entity.

The unlisted equity investments are measured at cost less impairment
at the end of the reporting period because they do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and their fair values cannot be

measured reliably.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group’s trading terms with customers are mainly on credit. During
the year, the credit terms generally range from 7 to 30 days. However,
according to past history, revenue from asset advisory and corporate
consultancy services would have a longer collection period of over 180
days. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding

receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by the directors.
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RER WAEEEEHAERBIMBR
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B 2% EWKE
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
B 220149F3 31 H1F FE

AEERERRHNE SRR (kR

The Group’s aging analysis of trade receivables, based on invoice date,

and net of allowance, is as follows: B BRI

Group

AEH
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
20145 20134
FTHERT FET
0 to 30 days 0z230H 31,999 30,932
31 to 90 days 31£290H 7,939 3,992
91 to 180 days 91£180H 1,333 15,708
181 to 365 days 181&365H 16,034 13,788
Over 365 days HB3@365H 55,615 14,739
112,920 79,159

AEERBEERBEREERARBHE
ZRERNGRIBENZER A B (LINEREE)

The Group's aging analysis of trade receivable from asset advisory

and corporate consultancy services, based on invoice date, and net of

allowance, is as follows: RBRER D ATRO T ¢

Group

rEE
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
20144 20134
FET T
0 to 30 days 0£30H 25,300 23,188
31 to 90 days 31290H - =
91 to 180 days 91£180H - 12,893
181 to 365 days 1812365H 14,377 13,176
Over 365 days H#3E365H 53,257 14,415
92,934 63,672

As at 31 March 2014, an allowance was made for estimated

irrecoverable trade receivables of approximately HK$7,118,000 (2013:

HK$2,256,000).

R2014F3A31H  AEB RGBT TA
el /& 5 U FRIE 497,118,000/% 7T
(20134F : 2,256,000 7T ) /£ H B 44 -



For the year ended 31 March 2014
B 220149F3 31 H1F FE

Reconciliation of allowance for trade receivables for the year is set out

WA F RE 5 I8 R IR B 6 0 ET RR #1051 40

below: 8

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$000

20145 20134

FERT FHIT

Balance at the beginning of the year FAEER 2,256 1,554
Allowance for the year FEEE 5,072 851
Reversal upon settlement for the year FEEE RO # (210) (149)
Balance at the end of the year FREH 7,118 2,256

As at 31 March 2014, trade receivables of approximately
HK$83,347,000 (2013: HK$49,735,000) were past due but not
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers to whom
there is no past history of default and normally have a much longer
collection period of over 180 days. An aging analysis of these trade

receivables is as follows:

M201463A318 B S EKRKRIELD
83,347,000 7T (20134 : 49,735,000/
T)BEEBERRBE ZERIEEE TR
FWEmERALHEIATEEEI180H v BE
WE BB 2 F AR - %5 B 5 IR
ERRE DT :

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

20144 20134

FERT FHT

Up to 3 months 3ME AR 10,396 6,617
3 to 6 months 32618 A 15,757 14,672
6 months to 1 year FEVZESE:S 25,904 13,808
Over 1 year HHim—F 31,290 14,638
83,347 49,735

The Group’s aging analysis of trade receivable from asset advisory and

corporate consultancy services which were past due but not impaired,

AEERBEERRREEFARBHED
BRERRENE S EESANRED T

is as follows: R
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
20144 20134
FHET FHT
3 to 6 months 3Z6fE A 14,377 12,893
6 months to 1 year 6fE A =14 23,188 13,176
Over 1 year HBiE1F 30,069 14,415

67,634 40,484
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Bl 2201493531 HIFFE

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables are denominated

in the following currencies:

0. B 5 EUWKE )

AEEE R FORREEIA TG
=

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

20145 20134

FERT T

Hong Kong dollars BT 20,474 27,536
Renminbi AR 75,686 48,529
United States dollars ETT 16,760 3,094
Total st 112,920 79,159

21. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

2. B AREBEFAERNSE

PROFIT OR LOSS BE
Group
AEH
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
2014%F 20135
FExT FHET
Derivative, at fair value PTHETAR EAREA
Unlisted FELEm - 206
The carrying amount of the above financial asset is classified as follows: T emEENREESENT
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
20145 20134
FTHERT FET
Held for trading BIEBER - 206

The investment represents investment in warrant of an associate,
TodayIR Holdings Limited, acquired at a consideration of HK$1 and
such warrant enables the Group to exercise an option to subscribe
for 150 further ordinary shares in the associate, at an exercise price of
HK$87,000 per share. The associate and the warrant were acquired

simultaneously, and the warrant was expired on 16 August 2013.
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Bl F2014F3H31H 1L FE

21.

22.

FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

The Group established fair value by using valuation techniques. These
include the use of discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing
models, making maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as

possible on entity-specific inputs. Major inputs into the model are as

21&@%%@#Af”m$ﬂ
&E

AEEFERBEEIEERAAEE ZFMH
BEERAEERBNARSRES T LY
BEEBRN YHEERANSEERET
BETR D RE A (8 ) B B8 T E RO BRIBE T 1

u’w

follows: B AZEAZEZHHEOT:
2014 2013
20144 20134
Underlying share price R 1D B A% N/ATIE A HK$74,602
74,6027 7T
Interest rate ) 2= N/ATE A 0.0730%
Volatility B N/ATE A 28.80%
Dividend yield P& B Mo s N/ATER 5.69%
Time to maturity 21| B I N/ATE A 0.4 yearsfF

AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED PARTY

22. EWEE /5 R IE

Group
TEE
2014 2013
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
20144 20134
B 5 F#ExT FHT
Due from a joint venture e —E& & R RIFKIA (a 4,080 1,370

(@ The amount due from a joint venture are unsecured, interest-free

and have no fixed repayment terms.
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Bl 2201493531 HIFFE
23. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSIT AND BANK AND
CASH BALANCES

The Company'’s pledged bank deposit represented deposits pledged to
banks to secure banking facilities granted to the Company as set out
in note 28 to the financial statements. The deposits are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and arranged at fixed interest rate of 1% (2013:
0.65%) per annum as at 31 March 2014 and therefore expose the

Group to fair value interest rate risk.

23. CEHBRITERRBRITRR

AN B S SRR B FE28FTH AR RIME S
HIRITIERIER AR AIFTER R TE B
EMERITE RN TFER  ZEFRAB AT
B WH201453A31 BIREE FFER1E
(20134 : 0.65/F) 5t & - MRS B A 78
EERNEEMNERR -

The cash and cash equivalents are as follows: ReRBZEBMET
Group Company
AEE NG|
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
20145 20135 20145 20135
TER FTHT TER FHT
Cash on hand FHEAS 390 384 - -
Cash at bank RITRS 3,634 19,074 68 11,052
Cash and cash equivalents RizeHeRERNEER
in the consolidated statement of ReEED
cash flows 4,024 19,458 68 11,052

The cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following

ReRReEBMUTIIEEE:

currencies:
Group Company
rEE NG|
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
201445 20134 201445 20135
FTHET FTHT FTEx FHT
Australian dollars RIT - 1 - -
Renminbi AR 1,063 1,121 - =
United States dollars e 23 11 - -
Hong Kong dollars BT 2,938 18,325 68 11,052
4,024 19,458 68 11,052

Conversion of Renminbi into foreign currencies is subject to the
PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of

Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014

ELZE2014F3A31HIFFE
24. TRADE PAYABLES 24. B B B RIE
The aging analysis of the Group's trade payables is as follows: REBEE FEMNFENRRDITHOT :
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
20144 20134
FET FHET
0 to 90 days 0£90H 4,820 5,082
The Group's trade payables are denominated in the following REEE FEMNFIEL TS EBFE
currencies:
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
201445 20134
F#&xT FHIT
Hong Kong dollars BT 4,820 5,082
25. AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR 25. BN —BESNHE
The amount due to a director is unsecured, interest-free and repayable BN —R2EENFIBREER 2ERIER
on demand. EREN
GreaterChina Professional Services Limited 118
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Bl 2201493531 HIFFE

26. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

26. MEHESE

Group
FEE
Present value of
Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments
BEAENE BREHEFENRE
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
20145 2013% 20145 20134
TER FET FTERT FET
Within one year —FR 172 172 167 162
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_FEFRF
(BREEMSF) - 172 - 167
172 344 167 329
Less: Future finance charges B ARREE X (5) (15 N/ATEAR NATER
Present value of lease obligations HMEEAMHRE 167 329 167 329

Less: Amount due for settlement within & : + =18 B R ZI 85 () Z08

12 months (shown under current (GlETREBaE)
liabilities)
Amount due for settlement T -EABEIEBX T2 FE

after 12 months

It is the Group's policy to lease out certain motor vehicles under finance
lease. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements
have been entered into for contingent rental payments. At the end
of each lease term, the Group has the option to purchase the motor
vehicle at nominal prices. The average lease term is 4 years. At 31
March 2014, the average effective borrowing rate was 3.1% (2013:
3.1%). Interest rates are fixed at the contract dates and thus expose the

Group to fair value interest rate risk.

All finance lease payables are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
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No provision for deferred taxation has been made in the financial
statements as the tax effect of temporary differences is immaterial to

the Group.

At 31 March 2014, the Group has unused tax losses of approximately
HK$30,980,000 (2013: HK$15,570,000) available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
these tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately

HK$5,007,000 (2013: HK$4,288,000) that will expire as follows:

MRERUEERNRBZENAKREMS
B RE R SRR A E AR TR
EEHR A

ANEBP201453 A31 B Al K 85 R 0
) &9 7% Eh F 7 78 &5 48 49 4530,980,0007%8
7L (20134 : 15,570,000/ 7T ) ° 48 5 R 2R
st Rl 2RO B9 A B FERI M - dR S B S
MEEEERECHRBEE KAERH
BEBRFEEFNUATFERERNER
#95,007,0005% 7T (20134F : 4,288,000/

JT) :
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
20145 20134
FHET T
Year 2017 20174 3,373 3,373
Year 2018 20184 915 915
Year 2019 20194 719 =
5,007 4,288

Other tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Temporary differences arising in connection with interests in subsidiaries

and associate are insignificant.

At 31 March 2014, the Group had banking facilities in respect of bank
overdraft and corporate credit card of approximately HK$2,000,000
and HK$300,000 respectively (2013: bank overdraft and corporate
credit card of approximately HK$2,000,000 and HK$300,000
respectively). The Group's banking facilities were secured by the
pledged bank deposit of approximately HK$1,022,000 (2013:
HK$1,014,000) of the Group.

H T TA RS8R A8 o

BTS2 7] Bk X B RO R T 2= A Y
ERMEET AN

M2014F3A8318 AEBBBRITE
XREBRORTEERE DN A
2,000,000 %300,0007% 7t (20134 : R
TEXREERHNBRITEEEED R
#7/2,000,000%300,0007 7T ) ° AN &
MEBTEEBENDERRITERD
1,022,0007% 7t (20134 : 1,014,000/ 7T.)
TEHE R o
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B B2014F3A31HIFFE
Number of
shares Amount
HK$
ROHE &8
BT
Authorised: JERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 EREE0.01%5 7T (20134 :
(2013: HK$0.01) each 0.0 7T) By E @Ak
At 31 March 2013, 1 April 2013 720133 831H - 20134F
and 31 March 2014 4H1B%2014%3A31H 2,000,000,000 20,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETRER:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 FREEE0.0178 T (20134 ¢
(2013: HK$0.01) each 0.01%87T) & @K
At 1 April 2012 R2012F471H 500,000,000 5,000,000
Issue of shares on exercise of ITEEREMBEITRG
share options (a) 40,000 400
At 31 March 2013 and R2013%F3A318 &
1 April 2013 20134718 500,040,000 5,000,400
Issue of shares on exercise of TR R ETAR D
share options (@) 1,800,000 18,000
At 31 March 2014 R201463A31H 501,840,000 5,018,400

Note:

(@ During the year, 1,800,000 (2013: 40,000) ordinary shares were
issued at HK$0.2 per share as a result of the exercise of share options

of the Company.

B o

(@ TR AAFREBREETFEMEZS
fi%0.2% 7T % 771,800,0004% (20134 :
40,0000% ) @A -
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The Group manages its capital to maintain an optimal capital structure
so as to maximise the return to its shareholders, to protect the interests
of its shareholders, safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to be able to service its debts when they are due. In order
to maintain or achieve an optimal capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividend payment, obtain various forms of debt/
equity financing available in the market at an appropriate cost when

necessary.

Management reviews the capital structure on a quarterly basis. As a
part of this review, management considers the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital. The Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing
debt.

The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged during the year.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for the Group is
to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to have a public float

of at least 25% of the shares.

(a) Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and consolidated statement of

changes in equity.

AEBAERERENER  BEBRRRK
B K (B 35 - R (2 E R B0 A 85 BEAR AR
SEAHELEURTNER D MR EER
RERSENEEHEER  BERZEDE
BERES AEBEAERABRNRES
B REAFRERUNAERAETSRES
BRANER,RAEE -

EEERFENESAER -EHERHE
BEBERNKANZRE RN ER R
REBAGEBIR N BLE « FITHAUA K 2
THEBRERRAEY FHEBEE
AR o

AEBHNEBRBNAFERTTIE -

R ER B 5 EL A B B2 P T b L Y e —
SNERSRBIBEARNERG  AEBEARFED

25% R0 R A BRI E
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(b) Company (b) &2 T
(Accumulated
Share-based losses)/
Share payment retained
premium reserve earnings Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
LRHBER (R:ER)/
M43 % 1E MRS REZF st
FHT FHT FHT FHT
At 1 April 2012 20124818 71,468 340 5,138 76,946
Share issued on exercise of I AR PR 1T IR (9
share options 10 ) - 8
Recognition of share based payments & 52 LA % 17 /& E 5 1) 1+ 5% - 373 = 373
Forfeiture of share options granted 2B & 2 BE AR = (42) 42 -
Profit for the year REF R H - - 6,060 6,060
2012 final dividend 2012 REARR & = = (5,000) (5,000)
At 31 March 2013 and 1 April 2013 7201338318 &
20135481 A 71,478 669 6,240 78,387
Share issued on exercise of TR TR ITIR(
share options 506 (164) - 342
Recognition of share based payments #E R LA B% 15 & EEHE /9 1+ 5% - 85 - 85
Forfeiture of share options granted S8 U 2 4% i = BE AR #E = (128) 128 =
Loss for the year KEEEE - - (3,790) (3,790)
2013 final dividend (note 14) 2013F REIR S (FiEE14) - - (2,500) (2,500)
At 31 March 2014 M2014%3H31H 71,984 462 78 72,524

(9]

Nature and purpose of reserves
(i)  Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations as well as
the effective portion of any foreign exchange differences
arising from hedges of the net investment in these foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 3(e)(iii) to the financial

statements.

(o) FEMEERE®

(1) B EE S 1

SNISTE X B B IR R B INE
BB mMREENMAINEZE
R AR ERZEINE R
BFHEELMTMINEZERMN
B o % ks Th IR IR BE 75
MR E3(e) i) FTE & 5T BUR
B
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(c) REMHEREN (&
TN 1

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(i) Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group represents (i) the original
investment costs in the Greater China Appraisal Limited
and GCA Holdings Limited incurred by the Group, (ii) the
non-controlling interests in the retained profits of Greater
China Appraisal Limited and GCA Holdings Limited acquired
by GCA Professional Services Group Limited upon a group
reorganisation in 2010, and (iii) the difference of the cost
of 999 ordinary shares issued in exchange for the entire
shareholdings of Fedelia Investments Limited and New
Valiant Limited and the nominal value of issued and paid
up shares of the subsidiaries existed immediately before the

Group Reorganisation.

(iii) Share premium account

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company are
distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary

course of business.

(iv) Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve represents (i) the fair value
of the actual or estimated number of unexercised share
options granted to employees of the Group recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for equity-
settled share-based payments in note 3(0) to the financial
statements and (ji) the fair value of 16,425,000 shares of the
Company placed down by Brilliant One Holdings Limited,
the immediate holding company of the Company, to reward
certain members of the senior management team of the

Company on 9 January 2012.

AEENEAFEHEEOAEE
REENEAR QR RIEE
SE(FER)BRAAEED
RISERA  (iIVEEZZERE
SEERDFIN2010F £ E
BHBKEZETERRAA
REEEE (ER)AERAA
YR B8 Vg A ) FE 428 11l 1 A A
K (i) B 17999 3 3 iR LA 3R EY
Fedelia Investments Limited &
New Valiant LimitedZ 2 3f % 4
B A R E R B S HAFE
BB B A B E 81T R AR AR 1D
HEZENERE-

(iii) SR ik (IR

(1v)

REMEHSRENE AR A
B EERTNE S AR T
AR R BR - MR B BE K AR
S RME ARARABRENE
NEEEEBIETIHEN 2
&%

LU 753 ZE BE 9 1 S At

VARR 17 7% EL B 0 15 SR I A 5 (1)
RAR 2R A BB TS 3Rk M o
(o) E M RE m A E AR &
ERONREABRRERK T
AEBEREE ZERAMGEAR
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RGNAR B EZEZER AT
Brilliant One Holdings Limited
B F516,425,0008% % 7 &) 2 7t
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Equity-settled share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants
include the full-time employees, officers, directors of the Company and
the Company'’s subsidiaries. The Scheme was adopted by a resolution
of the Company on 18 May 2011 and, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, will remain in force for 10 years commencing from the

adoption date as defined in the scheme.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted at any time under the Scheme together with options which
may be granted under any other share option schemes for the time
being of the Group shall not exceed such number of shares as equals
10% of the issued share capital of the Company at the date of approval
of the Scheme. Any further grant of shares options in excess of this
limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting. Unless
approved by the Company's shareholders, the total number of shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each
grantee (including both exercised and outstanding options) in any

12-month period must not exceed 1% of the shares in issue.

Em S E N RER S

ARARRMBERESTE ([5rE1)) B
HASEEEELEMNAER2EBELR
TREREFR - TEZAERSEERDRE
KA RAABIMEARNERES 17
WABRESE 5TEIR2011F5H180 &
RAT—IERBRIAE - RBRIEASITH
SHREETE SN - BRI B a1 BT R E R
BRI EI0FE R M-

4

PAEAR B AR 2 5t 81 7T BE 4% 1H 1 8 AR 4
ERREA S EE R B
B B S RDEA L
R TNEEEAAFRETEIERAR

EETRA10%KMH BB 0111@%—%}&?’
HEB B UL R BB AN R A BT
PRERHLAE - T A MEE < BRIEAR R B AR AL
> BRIFMEMRN 2{E A BE A& AR AR
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Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

Each grant of options to any of the directors, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their respective
associates must be approved by the independent non-executive
directors (excluding the independent non-executive director who is the
proposed grantee of the option (if any)). Where any grant of options
to a substantial shareholder of the Company or an independent non-
executive director, or any of their respective associates, would result in
the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted and to be granted (including options exercised, cancelled
and outstanding) to such person in the 12-month period up to and

including the date of such grant:

(i)  representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares in issue; and

(i) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the

shares at the date of each grant, in excess of HK$5 million,

such further grant of options must be approved by shareholders of the

Company.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days
from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by each grantee. An option may be exercised at any time
during the period to be determined and identified by the Board to each
grantee at the time of making an offer for the grant of an option, but
in any event no later than 10 years from the date of grant but subject

to the early termination of the Scheme.

EoEENERESTE (8
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Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued) Ea&ENERETE (8

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the directors, BRENTFEERESET BTN
but may not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing UT=FRz &K=& (ERERLER
price of the Company's shares on the date of the offer of the share NN TP OB S AT A U T (8 5 JR (i) B 8
options; (i) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s R E AR AER S B AR TR R
shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the FEV T T(E « R (iR R R MR L
offer; and (jii) the nominal value of the Company's shares on the date HEAZHEE -

of the offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to dividends or to vote FE AR I B T B B A MR B3P AR
at shareholders’ meetings. RA® LIEEZER-
Details of the specific categories of options are as follows: BRI RIS AR 2 FFIB T
Number of
share options
Date of grant Exercise period Exercise price outstanding
HK$
- _ 18 R AT
R B TR THEE BREHE
BT
Option A1 6 January 2012 From 18 May 2012 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20 200,000
FBREAT 201241 H6H B201245H18H £202145417H 0.20/ 7T
Option A2 6 January 2012 From 18 May 2012 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20 200,000
FEIEA2 201241 H6H BH201245H18H £202145417H 0.20/ 7T
Option B1 6 January 2012 From 30 January 2012 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20 496,666
BB 201241 H6H BH201241H308 £202145417H 0.20/ 7T
Option B2 6 January 2012 From 1 January 2013 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20 536,667
FE R ER2 20124 186H H2013F1 1B E202145817H 0.20% 7T
Option B3 6 January 2012 From 1 January 2014 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20 906,667

FE R #B3 201241 86H B2014F1 1B £2021465817H 0.208 7T
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Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

Date of grant

Exercise period

Exercise price

EREENERESTE (8

Number of
share options
outstanding

HK$
F h R 1T
R B # TR TEE BREHE
BT
Option C1 6 January 2012 From 30 January 2012 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20 450,000
BREC 201241 A6H B201241 4308 £202145417H 0.20% 7T
Option C2 6 January 2012 From 1 January 2013 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20 450,000
FEREC2 201241 A6H B201351 A1HZ202145/17H 0.20% 7T
Option D1 6 January 2012 From 1 July 2012 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20 110,000
FERREDY 201241 A6H B201247A1BZ202145/17H 0.20% 7T
Option D2 6 January 2012 From 1 January 2013 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20 110,000
FERED2 201241 A6H B201351 A1HZ202145/17H 0.20% 7T
Option D3 6 January 2012 From 1 January 2014 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20 110,000
FERED3 201241 A6H B201451 A1B£2021465/17H 0.20/% 7T
Option E1 6 January 2012 From 1 January 2013 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20 40,000
BT 201241 A6H B201351 A1BZ202145/17H 0.20/% 7T
Option E2 6 January 2012 From 1 January 2014 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20 40,000
FEREE2 20124F1 A6H B201451 A1BZ202145/17H 0.20/% 7T
Option E3 6 January 2012 From 1 January 2015 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20 40,000
FERLEE3 20124F1 A6H B201551 A1HZ202145/17H 0.20/% 7T
Option F 6 January 2012 From 1 July 2012 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20 240,000
FERHEF 20124F1 A6H B2012467 1B Z202145/17H 0.20/% 7T
Option G 6 January 2012 From 1 January 2013 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20 60,000
BTG 20124F1 A6H B201351 A1BZ202145/17H 0.20/% 7T
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B 220149F3 31 H 1 FE
Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued) EREENERESTS (8
Number of
share options
Date of grant Exercise period Exercise price outstanding
HK$
N ) R AT
REBAH THEH THREE BRERE
BT
Option H 6 January 2012 From 30 January 2012 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20 280,000
BN 201241 A6H B201241H308 Z202145817H 0.20/ 7T
Option J1 6 January 2012 From 1 July 2013 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20 300,000
B AN 201241 A6H B2013F7HA18E2021458178 0.20/ 7T
Option J2 6 January 2012 From 1 January 2014 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20 300,000
)2 201241 A6H B2014F1 18 E2021458178 0.20/ 7T
Option J3 6 January 2012 From 1 January 2015 to 7 May 2021 HK$0.20 300,000
A3 201241 A6H B2015F1 818 E202145A78 0.20/ 7T
5,170,000
If the options remain unexercised after a period of 10 years from the MBI AR 1 B AT 0F iR R DR
date of grant, the options expire. Options are forfeited if the employee AT RIRERRRE B A - e B R AR

leaves the Group before the options vest. SEABERASE  BIERERTZH-
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Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

Details of the share options outstanding during the year are as follows:

EREENERESSE (8
R RITEEZ BRRIE Y BT -

2014 2013
20145 20135

Weighted Weighted
Number of average Number of average
share options  exercise price  share options  exercise price
HKS HKS
mEFS mEEF
BRERE THE  BREHE 17128
B BT

Outstanding at the beginning of RE HARITHE
the year 8,600,000 0.20 9,730,000 0.20
Granted during the year RE A - - = -
Forfeited during the year RERZ U (1,630,000) 0.20 (1,090,000) 0.20
Exercised during the year RERTTHE (1,800,000) 0.20 (40,000) 0.20
Outstanding at the end of the year RERBARITE 5,170,000 0.20 8,600,000 0.20
Exercisable at the end of the year RERAIITEE 4,830,000 0.20 5,900,000 0.20

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share
options exercised during the year was HK$0.20. The options
outstanding at the end of the year have a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 7 years (2013: 8 years) and the exercise price is
HK$0.20 (2013: HK$0.20). Options were granted on 6 January 2012.
The estimated fair value of the options on that date is approximately

HK$912,000.

These fair values were calculated using the Black-Scholes pricing model.

The inputs into the model are as follows:

Weighted average share price nREFHRE
Weighted average exercise price nEFaTEE
Expected volatility T8 2R 1R
Expected life TR A A

Risk free rate £ [ B

Expected dividend yield JEHA PR B Uk 25 =R

RERNBATHE 2 BRENTTE B EZ M
T RR (B A0.2008 7T o IR F R M R 1T
R M FERE NFR AT
F (20134 : 8%F) R AT B £0.20/%8 7T
(20134 : 0.20% 7T ) ° FEARAE T HY20124F
TRA6AEE -BRENRZ A Z B AR
fE{E#9/4912,000% T °

%L R BETIRMA S e — & B AT i
EEEAAE -WAZERAZEENT

HK$0.196/& 7T
HK$0.207% 7T
58.74%

9.37 yearsfF
1.49%
2.398%
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Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility
of share prices of comparable companies with shares listed on the
Stock Exchange and engaged in the similar business of the Group.
The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on the
Group's best estimate, for the effects of non transferability, exercise

restrictions and behavioural considerations.

The fair value of the options will be amortised over the vesting period

and expensed in the profit or loss.

Other equity-settled share-based payments

On 9 January 2012, the immediate holding company, Brillion One
Holdings Limited, placed down 16,425,000 shares of the Company
to reward certain members of the senior management team of the
Company. The Company has recognised the share-based payment at

the bid price of the grant date of HK$0.18 per share.

Major non-cash transaction

The consideration of HK$24,500,000 for the disposal of an associate,
TodayIR Holdings Limited, was included in other receivables as at 31

March 2014.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, investment in available-for-sale

financial asset of approximately HK$375,000 was paid by a director.

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had no material contingent liabilities.

EaAENBRETE (8

TR R TOAR R A 0 B SR B BT B =
AEBBRURK 2T ELBR AR ZBRELZ
FE s IE Mt HERE - AR E A 2 B
BERHCRBEEEER A EE  1TER
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# o

BREZAABESNEBHABHEL R
B

HttREEEURDHERN

o
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201261 H98 - E#EE R 2 FBrillion
One Holdings Limited) #%516,425,0004% 48
RERG  ARERRBETFERERE
BB - N ARIBIREBRRG R F L A
Hi 2 3R B0. 188 TR AR 1D R AL FE AV A5

Eoe
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
Bl F20149F3H31H 1L F &

34. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2014, the Group did not have any significant capital

commitments (2013: Nil).

35. LEASE COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2014, the Group's total future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as

34, EARKIE
R2014F3A318  AEBEWELMER
BARAYE (20135 - &) o

35. HE &AL

R2014F3A31 8  AEB KT A BUE &
EHETHEMNAREERAEZRERZEN

follows: e
Group
AEH
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
20145 20134
FHT FAET
Within one year —FR" 6,936 7,082
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_FEFAF(REEEMT) 4,234 10,890
11,170 17,972

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for
certain of its offices and photocopier machines. Leases are negotiated
for terms ranging from one to five years and rentals are fixed over the

lease terms and do not include contingent rentals.

At 31 March 2014 the total future minimum lease receivable under

non-cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:

KREMEFREAEEREETHAE
R EIME NS - R = R
NF—2REAE HERBEHABET
B Y IrEEKAEE-

R2014F3A8318  RAAI BHE L E
THEWRRRERERBE LB T

Group
AEH
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
20145 20134F
FHExT FHIT
Within one year —F R 1,537 1,537
In the second to fifth years inclusive E_FEFRAF(BREEEMFE) 1,153 2,690
2,690 4,227

Operating lease payments represent rentals receivable by the Group
for certain of its offices. Leases are negotiated for an average term of
three years and rentals are fixed over the lease terms and do not include

contingent rentals.
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B B 75 SRR IR EL A 30 75 R BR R T 2
5 RAESRIN REBERNFAERRES B A

following transactions with its related parties during the year: TR5:

In addition to those related party transactions and balances disclosed

elsewhere in the notes to the financial statements, the Group had the

Name of directors and related parties having

— Greater China Investment
Advisory & Management
Limited

—EERAETERBEEBRAR

— Greater China Investment
Fund Limited

— SL Resources Limited

—BHRERBRA A

— TodayIR (Hong Kong) Limited

- SRR ER DA

— Asia Pacific International
Professional Managers
Management Centre Limited

—FABERRBELEA
BEERLEBRAA

— Asia Pacific Professional
Managers Association
Company Limited

DARELBEABES
BRAT]

- Hong Kong Professional
Managers Association
Company Limited

EABELEABEAERAA

Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong, and
Mr. Wong Chi Keung (a)

B S A R E 2 58 5 A (a)
Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong, and

Mr. Wong Chi Keung (a)
BRI EEREZEEE ()
Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong, and

Mr. Wong Chi Keung (a)
B S A R E 2 58 5 A (a)
TodayIR Holdings Limited (b)

Asia Pacific International Professional

Managers Holdings Limited (c)

DARBIFR B ERE AZERAR A E()

Asia Pacific International Professional

Managers Holdings Limited (c)

DARBIRBELEAZERARAF()

Asia Pacific International Professional

Managers Holdings Limited (c)

CEpNEiS - S PN &l YN [(o)

14

61

61

19

23

beneficial interest in the transaction 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
RRETREEEZRENESRAEIER 20145 20134
FET FHET
Corporate services and consultancy
income from related companies
KERERTNEERS R
AU A
— Greater China Capital Limited Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong, and
Mr. Wong Chi Keung (a) 120 264
—EEERFRAA BEREEREZEEE ()

30

28

36



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 ¥R AR Y RE

For the year ended 31 March 2014

HZE2014F3H31HIFF/ZF
36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 36. BEAFRS (&)

Name of directors and related parties having

beneficial interest in the transaction 2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
RGP BEEEZEENESRBAESI S 20145 20134
FTET FHET
Subcontracting charges, referral fee
and commission paid to related
parties
ENBAERSBE BENERAS
— Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong (included ~ Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong
in directors’ emoluments) 9 33
— RN EE R EE
(B AZEZHH)
— TodayIR (Hong Kong) Limited TodayIR Holdings Limited (b) 40 85
- SRPKERBER AR
— Greater China Mineral & Energy  Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong, and
Consultants Limited Mr. Wong Chi Keung (a) 775 -
-EERERREMRBRLIA  EEKXEEREZREEQ)
Rental expenses paid to
related parties
ENEERHERX
— Greater China Lihe (Shanghai)  Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong, and
Equity Investment Mr. Wong Chi Keung (a)
Management Limited (d) 789 339
—EEMR (B REREE EBEREEREZRESE Q)
BAER R FN()
GreaterChina Professional Services Limited 134
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R R M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014
Bl E2014F3H31H 1L FE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(@ Mr. Wong Chi Keung is a non-controlling shareholder having

significant influence to the Group.

(b) TodaylIR Holdings Limited was an associate of the Group.

(c) Asia Pacific International Professional Managers Holdings Limited

is a joint venture of the Group.
(d) English names for identification purpose.

The key management personnel compensation paid by the Group is

disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements.

37. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

After the reporting period, one of the subsidiaries, Asset-Plus Global

Limited, has been deregistered.

38. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the

Board of Directors on 24 June 2014.

135

36. BERRZ (#)

37.

38.

(a

(d)

BZRAERUAEEREATE
FH)FEFE AR AR

TodayIR Holdings Limited %< £ & &)

=
NI

TEABIFR BB AZERBR A A
DAEEN—HaERa-

ZERXBEIEBR A -

AEEEMEEZEERE A BN R IT
MR 12 FE -

BEMEEH

RaReE Bi1% - — R KT B 2 Al Asset-Plus
Global Limited & % 5 $4 °

HEFHRE

MR R2014F6 A4 EEE= gt
AR AR T

BREEXBRBERRD A
2014 £



A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out below.

AEBRNBEREMBERENREREEAR

BEMEHINMT -

Year ended 31 March

BEIANALEE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
20144 20134 20124 20114 20104
FHT FHET FHET FHET FHET
RESULTS ]
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AND ZIN/NEIE ZEDN
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF JEAG & E S5 A
THE COMPANY 31,282 26,929 10,323 25,427 26,727
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERAR
As at 31 March
M3A31H
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
20144 20134 20124 20114 20104
FET FHET FHET FHET FHET
TOTAL ASSETS BEE 159,326 136,956 109,735 52,899 43,165
TOTAL LIABILITIES wmaE (11,428) (18,278) (13,322)  (16,558)  (17,866)
147,898 118,678 96,413 36,341 25,299

Note: The summary of the combined results of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2010 and of the assets and liabilities as of 31 March 2010 have
been extracted from the Company'’s listing prospectus dated 25 May 2011
which have been prepared on a combined basis to indicate the results of the
Group as if the Group structure, at the time when the Company’s shares
were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, had been in
existence throughout that year. The audited results of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2014 and the audited assets and liabilities of the Group
as at 31 March 2014 are those set out in the audited consolidated financial

statements.

The summary above does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

Biat: AEFREZF2010F3531H 1FFEAIE

GERERIE A R R20109E3 531 A #8E
REEERRE AR A HRB20114F5H
258 FTTIEREFE R EE 155 HEE
AR, F B KB B ZEAE - a0 E
RA R GRGREEH S ZATER LA A]
LTh  ERZEEF R - A EFR
B F20144F3 531 H I F IR EZ EE
R A EFR2014F3 431 H A& FZEE
REETEHRAEFE A S R

K _EBEEI T B F B & B KA

—#5



GreaterChina Professional Services Limited

= FEF H X R B AR L 3

www.gca.com.hk

Room 2703, 27" Floor, Shui On Centre
6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
EREFBEEc-sImETPIN27182703E

Tel % &4 : +852 2511 6868 Fax & E: +852 2511 6161
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